VISDYNAMICS HOLDINGS BERHAD (677095-M)

M
SI

P

LIC
Kawasan Perindustrian Tasik Utama
Ayer Keroh, 75450 Melaka, Malaysia
606-2323 023

Fax: 606-2323 600

OVATIVE

ANNUAL REPORT 2009

Lot 3844, Jalan TU 52

Tel:

TOP CHOICE
OF SEMICONDUCTOR
EQUIPMENT

INN

ITY

VERSATILE

www.vis-dynamics.com
Annual Report 2009

Calendar of Events
Quality
Certiﬁed
ISO 9001

Annual
Dinner
2010

Handicapped & Mentally
Retarded Love Centre

Festive
Celebrations

Our Vision
To be semiconductor industry’s top choice
of equipment solution provider through
value innovation, best-in-class performance,
excellent service & support, cost effectiveness,
environmental friendliness and partnership
with customers, peers, suppliers & employees.

Our Mission
•
•
•
•

Strive to meet or exceed expectation of customers, peer
partners, suppliers, employees & investors
Identify and employ/partner with the best talents in the
market
Unleash the best potential of partners & employees
Contribute to local & global communities in education &
long term economy sustainability
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C orporate Structure

BACK-END SEMICONDUCTOR EQUIPMENT
To test, inspect and transfer of semiconductor at high speed

T-Series

OEM VISION INSPECTION SYSTEM
To inspect an object automatically at high speed
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G-Series

F inancial Highlights

2005 1
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2006
RM’000
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2008
RM’000

2009
RM’000

TURNOVER

8,036

6,309

9,612

9,311

3,210

GROSS PROFIT

5,489

3,481 0

4,787

4,328

1,965

DEPRECIATION
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(150) 0

(255)

(409)

(708)

(7)

(44)

(183)

(197)

(159)

(1)

(26)

(21)

(27)

(51)

238 0
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(1,491)

(961)

AMORTIZATION OF DEVELOPMENT EXPENDITURE
INTEREST EXPENSE
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION

3,295

TAXATION

-

26

43

(2)

(16)

PRE-ACQUISITION PROFITS

(1,102)

-

-

-

-

PROFIT/(LOSS) AFTER TAXATION

2,193 *

265

50,000 *

66,852

NO. OF ORDINARY SHARES IN ISSUE (‘000)
BASIC EPS (sen) **

6.6

295

(1,493)

(978)

66,998

67,088

67,088

0

0.5 0

0.4

(2.2)

(1.5)

NET TANGIBLE ASSETS PER SHARE (sen)***

10.30

21.70

21.90

20.05

19.40

R&D SPENDING (‘000)

1,027

1,389

1,408

735

496

INVENTORY

1,276

3,328

5,560

5,826

5,132

RECEIVABLES

4,016

4,820

3,562

2,219

2,001

962

6,532

(3,078)

(2,417)

94

NET (DECREASE) / INCREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

NOTES
1
For ﬁnancial period from 3 January 2005 (date of incorporation) to 31 October 2005.
*
Assumed to be in existence throughout the ﬁnancial period.
**
The basic Earnings Per Share (EPS) is arrived at by dividing the Group’s proﬁt attributable to shareholders (before pre-acquisition proﬁt
but after taxation) by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.
*** The Net Tangible Assets (NTA) Per Share is arrived at by dividing net tangible assets value attributable to ordinary shares by the number
of ordinary shares in issue.
0
Restated in ﬁnancial year ended 31 October 2007
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Chairman’s Statement

It is my pleasant duty to review our
performance for the past year and
to provide you with an overview of
our plans and glimpse of the road
ahead.
The woods are lovely, dark, and deep
But I have promises to keep
And miles to go before I sleep
-Robert FrostOUR INDUSTRY
It is my pleasant duty to review our performance for the past year and to provide you with an overview of our plans and
glimpse of the road ahead.

OUR INDUSTRY
FY 2008/2009 has been a year of unparalleled economic turbulence and market volatility fraught with uncertain twists and
turns.
Starting from the collapse of large ﬁnancial institutions, ﬁrst in the United States, then in Europe, the contagion quickly spread
across the world, pushing many major economies into recession in spite of concerted efforts by governments to inject liquidity
and conﬁdence into the banking system.
The global economic slowdown had a dampening effect on the semiconductor industry. Worldwide semiconductor revenue
dropped precipitously in the ﬁrst quarter of 2009, continuing a deterioration which started in the last quarter of 2008. Even
a small uptick, noted towards the end of the 1st quarter, led to signiﬁcant quarter-over-quarter growth in the periods that
followed.
All in all, 2009 goes on record as one of the worst years for the semiconductor industry since the burst of the dot-com bubble
in 2001, and the ﬁrst year the semiconductor industry posted declines two years in a row. Worldwide semiconductor revenues
declined 5.4 percent in 2008, a consequence of the worldwide economic recession, which began in the fourth quarter. The
semiconductor industry posted a revenue decline for the sixth time in the last 25 years, with worldwide revenue totalling $226
billion in 2009, an 11.4 percent decline from 2008, according to Gartner, Inc.
Fortunately, at the time of writing, several major economies appear to be slowly recovering from the worst worldwide
economic recession. Emerging markets like China and India continued with growth that ultimately acted as the engine of
growth for exports from Japan, as well as the East Asian region, cutting short what would have been otherwise a prolonged
recession. As we put this statement to bed, the pundits are cautiously optimistic that prospects on a global basis will reverse
the negative second derivatives of 2009.
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Chairman’s Statement (cont’d)

PERFORMANCE REVIEW
Despite the glimmer of light at the end of the tunnel, we could not avert a sobering set of results for 2008/2009. Despite proactive cost cutting on the part of Management, top line decline resulted in a wash of red ink, albeit at lower levels as compared
to the previous year.
The Group posted a lower revenue of RM 3.2 million in the current ﬁnancial year to date ended 31 October 2009, a decrease of
RM 6.1 million or 66% from the previous corresponding ﬁnancial year to date ended 31 October 2008 of RM 9.3 million due to
the downturn in the semiconductor industry resulted from the tightening of capital expenditure by customers and end-users
in response to the softening in general economic condition and the global ﬁnancial crisis.
On a product group basis, semiconductor back-end equipment, both gravity and tray, contributed 82% of our total revenue
generated during FY 2009. The balance was made up of upgrading projects and spares and services. As for geographical
coverage, about 50% of our sales went to Asia whilst the other half went to United States of America.
The Group posted a loss before taxation of RM 961k in the current ﬁnancial year ended 31 October 2009, a decrease of RM
530k or 36% as compared to a loss before taxation for the previous corresponding ﬁnancial year ended 31 October 2008 of RM
1.5 million mainly due to write back of inventories and also cost cutting measures undertaken by the Group during the current
ﬁnancial year .

PROSPECTS
Your Board and Management are cautiously optimistic of the Group’s performance for the next ﬁnancial year given the recent
signs of stabilising economic indicators, particularly in the semiconductor industry. The semiconductor industry has been
running with hardly any slack for so many years that some rebound in capital expenditure is bound to take place at some time.
How long that will last, and whether the long hoped for green shoots will take root, and grow towards a healthy recovery is
left to be seen.
The recent forecast released by Semiconductor Industry Association reﬂects an improving global economy. Unit sales of key
demand drivers, including PCs and cell phones, which together account for about 60 percent of semiconductor demand, have
been stronger than previously predicted. Consequently, the back-end equipment market is also expected to gradually improve
as device demand improves.
While these developments are useful as a guide for our sales projections, our share of the ATE market is miniscule. Hence, our
sales performance may be quite different from the market as a whole.
In deriving our sales projections, we are guided more by the demand projections of our customers, judiciously discounted on
the basis of past performance.
Indeed, if the initial reports of our customers are anything to go by, the challenge ahead may be keeping pace with a surge
of demand caused by replacement investment, and a judicious increment in new capacity, which has been long delayed over
recent years.
That will be a happier problem, and we shall see if it materialises.

VisDynamics Holdings Berhad (677095-M)

•

Annual Report 2009

•



Chairman’s Statement (cont’d)

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
During the year under review, we have offered nine internships to a number of undergraduates who were required to fulﬁl
their practical training requirements. Apart from learning technical skills, these undergraduates had the opportunity to gain an
insight of our corporate culture, our processes and our operations. These young people may well be attracted to join us upon
graduation.
Apart from sponsoring and giving two scholarships to our existing staff, we are currently discussing with local universities the
possibility of granting scholarship to the undergraduates. Recipients of such awards will, upon graduation, be offered positions
and be bonded to serve our company for a reasonable length of time.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The Group is committed to achieving and maintaining good standards of corporate governance. The Board views good
corporate governance as going beyond the duty of care that it owes to shareholders. We believe that, all things being equal,
good governance to translate into lower cost of capital for the Group, and a premium for shareholders in the long term.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
Allow me express, on behalf of my colleagues, our deep appreciation to the members of our management team and employees
of the Group. Your effective execution of the Group’s strategies through sheer hard work, commitment and team work in a
demanding and challenging business environment have certainly contributed much to turn things around. It is heartening for
us that, despite adverse circumstances, we have all banded together, and pulled through a very difﬁcult period without a single
retrenchment.
Our sincere gratitude is also due to our shareholders, customers, joint venture partners, business associates, suppliers,
bankers, and government authorities, for their conﬁdence and support during this difﬁcult period.
Lastly, to my fellow Board members, may I thank you for your personal sacriﬁce, perspicacity and leadership in leading the
Group out of woods.
However, in the words of the poet, we have many miles to go and we cannot rest on our laurels.
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B oard of Directors

1. Khairil Anuar Bin Abdullah

-

Chairman / Independent Non-Executive Director

2. Dato’ Nordin Bin Baharuddin -

Independent Non-Executive Director

3. Datuk Azzat Bin Kamaludin

-

Independent Non-Executive Director

4. Choy Ngee Hoe

-

Chief Executive Ofﬁcer / Executive Director

5. Lee Chong Leng

-

Chief Technical Ofﬁcer / Executive Director

6. Ong Hui Peng

-

Machine Software Department Manager / Executive Director
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Board of Directors’ Proﬁle

Khairil Anuar bin Abdullah
59 years of age / Malaysian, Chairman / Independent Non-Executive Director
En Khairil Anuar Bin Abdullah (“En Khairil”) was appointed as the Chairman/Non-Executive Non-Independent Director on
14 January 2005. He is the Chairman of the Employees’ Share Option Scheme (“ESOS”) Committee and a member of the
Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and Audit Committee.
En Khairil graduated with a ﬁrst degree in economics from the University of Malaya in 1972 and obtained his Master of Business
Administration from Harvard Business School, USA in 1981. He is a Fellow of the Malaysian Institute of Banks.
En Khairil’s career covers a diverse range of government and corporate experiences in the Economic Planning Unit of the Prime
Minister’s Department from 1973 to 1982, the Guthrie Group of Companies from 1983 to 1987, Batu Lintang Rubber Company
(re-listed on Bursa Securities as Advance Synergy Berhad) and Arthur D Little from 1988 to 1992. In 1993, he joined the Securities
Commission at its commencement as Director for Policy and Development. His portfolio included regulations and law reform,
product development, economic research, information technology, the Securities Industry Development Centre, accounting
standards and Islamic capital market development. He also served in the advisory committee of the Malaysian Central
Depository, the Board of the Labuan Offshore Financial Services Authority and chaired a working group on the regulation of
secondary markets of the Emerging Markets Committee of the International Organisation of Securities Commission (“IOSCO”).
He was a member of the Bank of International Settlement / IOSCO Task Force on clearing and settlement in 1996.
In 1997, he was appointed founding chairman of the Malaysian Exchange of Securities Dealing & Automated Quotation Bhd
(MESDAQ), Malaysia’s securities exchange catering to high growth and technology companies until it merged with Bursa
Securities (then the Kuala Lumpur Stock Exchange) in 2002.
Currently, En Khairil is the Director of Symphony House Berhad, Kuwait Finance House (M) Berhad, and Apollo Hospitals
Enterprise Limited.

Choy Ngee Hoe
46 years of age / Malaysian, Executive Director / Chief Executive Ofﬁcer
Mr Choy Ngee Hoe (“Mr Choy”) was appointed as the Executive Director on 14 January 2005. He is also a member of the
Remuneration Committee and ESOS Committee.
Mr Choy, a major shareholder, is our Chief Executive Ofﬁcer and one (1) of the founder members of Visdynamics Research Sdn
Bhd (“VRSB”), a subsidiary of our company. He is the leader of the team of talented and experienced engineers in VRSB. He
oversees our management team as well as in charge of devising our corporate strategies and plans.
Mr Choy graduated from University of Malaya with a Bachelor of Science Degree in Mechanical Engineering (Honours) in 1988.
He began his career in the semiconductor industry in 1988 as a Process Engineer in a subsidiary of one (1) of the well-known
Multi-National Corporations (MNCs), National Semiconductors Corporation, in Melaka. Mr Choy was exposed to manufacturing
and process technologies covering molding, strip/laser marking, solder plating, trim and form, electrical tests, reliability test
and all the way to ﬁnal pack in various consumers, industrial and military/aerospace products. Other than process related
responsibilities such as yield improvement, cost savings, upgrades, productivity enhancement, equipment qualiﬁcation,
product transfer etc, he was also actively involved in new product development that required him to work with the corporate
R&D team. His last position in National Semiconductor Corporation was Equipment Manager.
Mr Choy joined Telford as Operations Manager in 1994 and helped form and head TQS Manufacturing Sdn Bhd (“TQSSB”).
TQSSB is a Tape and Reel (TNR) contract manufacturer. He was later promoted as Business Director in TQSSB where he was
heavily involved in semiconductor equipment development.
In 1997, Telford acquired the backend equipment division of a major semiconductor Integrated Device Manufacturer (IDM),
Texas Instruments Incorporated, where he was a member of the acquisition team. Telford equipment division was then spun off
to become the Semiconductor Technologies & Instruments (STI) group of companies. Mr Choy was made President of STI Sdn
Bhd, which he helped form. In 1999, Telford and the STI group of companies were later united under ASTI Holding Ltd (“ASTI”)
and listed on the Singapore Exchange Ltd, Singapore. Mr Choy also held directorship and chairmanship in various international
ASTI subsidiaries and helped ASTI with another major acquisition, the Reel Service Ltd group of companies, making ASTI one
of the world’s largest TNR contract manufacturers. He resigned from ASTI at 31 December 2002 and subsequently set up VRSB
with the rest of the promoters.
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Board of Directors’ Proﬁle

Lee Chong Leng
45 years of age / Malaysian / Executive Director / Chief Technical Ofﬁcer
Mr Lee Chong Leng (“Mr Lee”) was appointed as the Executive Director on 14 January 2005. He is also a member of ESOS
Committee.
Mr Lee is our Chief Technical Ofﬁcer (“CTO”) and one (1) of the founder members of VRSB. In his capacity, Mr Lee oversees
our Vision Software, Mechanical Design, Machine Software and Equipment Assembly sections. In addition, he is also our R&D
project leader, in which he is in charge of the overall R&D activities that we undertake. He is involved in the formulation of
corporate strategies and implementation of the R&D policy.
Mr Lee graduated with both Bachelor of Science Degree in Computer Science and Bachelor of Engineering Degree (Honours)
in Electrical Engineering from University of New South Wales in 1989.
Upon his graduation, he joined as a Test Engineer in the subsidiary of one (1) of the well-known semiconductor MNCs, National
Semiconductors Corporation, in Penang. During 1990 to 1997, he acted as an R&D Engineer for Powermatic Sdn Bhd in
Petaling Jaya, Selangor which specialized in the manufacturing of security system, time management system and computer
peripherals. In 1997, he joined TQS Manufacturing Sdn Bhd, a subsidiary of ASTI, which specialized in the TNR solution for
semiconductor back-end industry, as Engineering Manager for two (2) years. In 1999, he was transferred to STISB, a subsidiary
of ASTI, where he held the post of Engineering Manager.
Mr Lee resigned from ASTI and STISB on 15 November 2002 after which he and the rest of the promoters formed VRSB
where he assumed the position as Engineering Manager and subsequently CTO. His vast experience and technical know-how
throughout his twenty (20) years of employment history has gained him reputable recognition from the industry. He is also one
(1) of the inventors of our proprietary on-track mark and 3D vision inspection which are pending patent registration.

Ong Hui Peng
34 years of age / Malaysian / Executive Director / Machine Software Department Manager
Ms Ong Hui Peng (“Ms Ong”) was appointed as the Executive Director on 14 January 2005. She is one (1) of the founder
members of VRSB. Presently, she manages our Machine Software section and is responsible for all our machine software
development projects. She contributes actively in R&D activities undertaken by us under the leadership of the CTO. Other than
that, Ms Ong participates in the formulation and implementation of R&D strategies. She graduated from University of Malaya
with a Bachelor’s Degree (Honours) in Computer Science in 1999.
Ms Ong started her career in the semiconductor industry in 1999 as a Software Engineer in STISB, a subsidiary of ASTI,
specializing in machine software development, and later as a Section Head of Machine Software.
Ms Ong resigned from STISB on 15 November 2002 after which she and the rest of the promoters formed VRSB where
she assumed the post of Section Head of Machine Software Development and subsequently Machine Software Department
Manager. Her specialization in the software development and experience during her career has been recognized by the
industry.
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Board of Directors’ Proﬁle (cont’d)

Dato’ Nordin Bin Baharuddin
60 years of age / Malaysian / Non-Executive Independent Director
Dato’ Nordin Bin Baharuddin (“Dato’ Nordin”) was appointed as the Non-Executive Independent Director on 9 February 2006.
He is the Chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the Nomination Committee.
Dato’ Nordin graduated from University of London, United Kingdom with a Bachelor of Science (Econs) (Hons) Degree in 1973.
He joined Deloitte Haskins & Sells in London in 1973 upon graduation to pursue Chartered Accountancy. Following that, Dato’
Nordin joined Petronas in 1979 as Manager in the Production Sharing Audit & Accounts Department.
Dato’ Nordin joined Ernst & Young Malaysia in 1980 as Manager and was soon promoted to Principal and Partner. Subsequently
in 1984, he was reassigned to the Sarawak ofﬁce of Ernst & Young to assist the Partner-in-Charge to develop the Ernst & Young
ofﬁces in Sarawak. In 1990, he was appointed the Partner-in-Charge of Sarawak. In 2004, he retired as Executive Chairman of
Ernst & Young Malaysia after 35 years in the accounting and auditing sector in Malaysia and overseas.
Dato’ Nordin is a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and a member of the Chartered
Institute of Taxation, London. Presently, he is serving as President of the Malaysian Institute of Certiﬁed Public Accountants,
Council Member and Chairman of the Accounting and Auditing Committee and Practice Review Committee in the Malaysian
Institute of Accountants and member of the Malaysian Financial Reporting Foundation. He is also a Member of the Mongolian
Institute of Certiﬁed Public Accountants and has helped to develop the profession in Mongolia as well as provided professional
advice to the corporate sector through his tenure as Partner-in-Charge of Ernst & Young Mongolia.
Currently, he sits on the boards of Sarawak Energy Berhad, Scomi Engineering Berhad and Malaysian Rating Corporation
Berhad.

Datuk Azzat Bin Kamaludin
64 years of age / Malaysian / Non-Executive Independent Director
Datuk Azzat Bin Kamaludin (“Datuk Azzat”) was appointed as the Non-Executive Independent Director on 9 February 2006. He
is the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee. He is also a member of the Audit Committee.
A lawyer by profession, Datuk Azzat graduated from Queen’s College, University of Cambridge, with a degree of Bachelor of
Arts in 1968 and a Degree of Bachelor of Law in International Law in 1969. He was admitted to the Honourable Society of the
Middle Temple, London in 1970.
From 1970 to 1979, Datuk Azzat was an Administrative and Diplomatic Ofﬁcer with the Ministry of Foreign Affairs, during
which time, he was also Assistant Secretary of Association of Southeast Asian Nation (ASEAN) and Zone of Peace, Freedom
and Neutrality (ZOPFAN) Divisions, Second Secretary at the Permanent Mission of Malaysia to the United Nations, Head of
Chancery at the Malaysian Commission in Hong Kong and ﬁnally, Principal Assistant Secretary, Law of the Sea Division. He has
been a partner of the legal ﬁrm, Messrs Azzat & Izzat ever since 1979.
He has served as a member of the Securities Commission and the Board of MESDAQ before its merger with the then Kuala
Lumpur Stock Exchange.
Currently, Datuk Azzat serves on the boards of Boustead Holdings Berhad Group, Afﬁn Holdings Berhad, KPJ Healthcare Berhad,
Pulai Springs Berhad, Celcom (Malaysia) Berhad and TM International Berhad.

Notes:
1. None of the Directors has any family relationship with any Directors and/or major shareholders of the Company.
2. None of the Directors has any business arrangement with the Company in which he has a personal interest or has any conﬂict of
interest with the Company.
3. None of the Directors has any conviction for offences within the past 10 years, other than trafﬁc offences, if any.
4. The details of directors’attendance of board meetings in the ﬁnancial year ended 31 October 2009 are disclosed in page 13 of this
Annual Report.
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Corporate Governance Statement

VisDynamics Holdings Berhad recognizes that its existence in its business ecology relies upon the support, trust and conﬁdence
of our shareholders, business associates, customers, suppliers, ﬁnanciers and various other groups of stakeholders with
whom it interacts and/or conducts business.
Thus, even with the enhanced listing requirements in respect of corporate governance practices in Malaysia, the Board of
Directors (“Board”) believes that it is more important in adhering to the spirit of the best practices of the corporate governance
instead of mere compliance based on the black lettered Code. As such, the Board strives to ensure that the Group practice
good corporate governance not only to comply with the Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance and Listing Requirements
of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (“Bursa Securities”) for the ACE Market (“ACE”) but, more importantly to uphold its
responsibilities to its shareholders in term of transparency, accountability, integrity and responsible corporate conduct. A l l
said and done, the Board ﬁrmly believes that governance will reduce the risk premium of the company and reduce its cost of
capital in the long run.
1.

Board of Directors
1.1. The Board
The Board receives the contribution of its Directors who bring a wide range of skills to bear in their deliberations.
Such cognate specializations such as various aspects of engineering, including mechatronics, electronics,
software and vision inspection are related to the core activities of the company. Supporting disciplines such as
strategic planning, accounting, legal and regulatory affairs, corporate ﬁnance, banking and general management
complements the engineering inputs and provide a wide base to assist management in governance, strategy
formulation, risk management, ﬁnancial and operational control, succession planning and compensation planning.
The Chairman is tasked to ensure the effectiveness of the Board. In order to provide a gauge of the overall
effectiveness of the Board as a whole, as well as contribution of individual directors, the Board has adopted
a formal framework for such assessments. During the ﬁnancial year ended 31 October 2009, the Nomination
Committee has conducted the assessment on the overall effectiveness of the Board by way of self-assessment
whereby areas for improvement have been identiﬁed and discussed as a group.
1.2. Board Composition
Composition of the Board of three (3) Executive Directors and three (3) Non-Executive Directors of which two (2)
of them are independent is in line with the Listing Requirements that at least two (2) directors or one-third (1/3) of
the Board, whichever is higher, comprises of Independent Directors.
The Board consists of Directors with the right mix of relevant experiences, skills and knowledge in the Group
context.
The role of Independent Non-Executive Directors within the Board is particular important as they bring a balance
to the Board by providing unbiased and independent advice and judgment on the governance of the Group. The
Independent Non-Executive Directors, being a reputable and experienced individuals within their cognate ﬁelds of
specialization and their business segments, also play a pivotal role in ensuring that all important macroeconomic
developments, market feedback and behavior of competitors and customers are thoroughly and fully discussed
and evaluated. Short term plans and long term strategies are set so that interests of shareholder and stakeholders
are well taken care of.
Datuk Azzat Bin Kamaludin is the Senior Independent Non-Executive Director to whom concerns may be conveyed.
He can be contacted by email at azzat@vis-dynamics.com.
1.3. Chairman and Chief Executive Ofﬁcer
The roles of the Chairman and Chief Executive Ofﬁcer are distinct and separated to ensure balance of power
and authority so that no single individual has absolute power within the Group. The roles of Chairman and Chief
Executive Ofﬁcer has been tabled, discussed and subsequently approved by the Board.
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1.

Board of Directors (cont’d)
1.4. Supply of Information
In order to carry out their duties effectively and diligently, all the Directors have been granted unrestricted access
to all information pertaining to the Group’s business and affairs. All Directors are given notice and agenda and
Board Papers containing all relevant information ahead of the Board Meetings, to enable them to review, consider
and deliberate knowledgeably on the issues and to facilitate informed decision making. Minutes of the previous
Board Meeting are circulated in advance of Board Meeting for review and conﬁrmation at each Board Meeting.
Matters requiring further actions and updates arising from previous Board Meeting are separately identiﬁed at
each Board Meeting to ensure all outstanding issues are sufﬁciently addressed and followed through and all
further information is provided for decision making. Updates on the development of the semiconductor and
semiconductor equipment industry were provided on quarterly basis to the Board to ensure all decisions made
have taken into consideration of the latest industry movement.
In addition there is a schedule of matters reserved speciﬁcally for the Board’s deliberation and decision which
include, but are not limited to, corporate plans and budgets, strategic and policy issues, major ﬁnancial decision,
performance review, risk management, corporate proposals, major acquisitions and disposals of undertakings/
business/property, compensation of the CEO and senior management and changes to the management and
control structure within the Group.
The Board is updated with the latest development in the statutory and regulatory requirements relating to the
duties and responsibilities required of Directors. Courses for the beneﬁt of Directors are circulated from time
to time for the self improvement of Directors and for the performance of the Board as a whole. All Directors
have ready access to the advices and services of the Company Secretary and the Management of the Group and
may seek independent professional advice, at the Company’s expenses, if required for the furtherance of their
responsibilities and duties.
1.5. Board Meetings
In order to effectively discharge its duties and responsibilities, the Directors meet at regular intervals for the review
of the Group’s performance and discussion and deliberation of signiﬁcant corporate proposals and strategies as a
team. The Board is scheduled to meet at least four (4) times a year. Additional Board Meetings have been held as
and when required.
During the ﬁnancial year ended 31 October 2009, the Board had met ﬁve (5) times. Details of the attendance are
as follows:

No. Name

Designation

1
2
3
4
5
6

Chairman, Independent Non-Executive Director
Chief Executive Ofﬁcer, Executive Director
Chief Technical Ofﬁcer, Executive Director
Executive Director
Independent Non-Executive Director
Independent Non-Executive Director

Khairil Anuar Bin Abdullah
Choy Ngee Hoe
Lee Chong Leng
Ong Hui Peng
Dato’ Nordin Bin Baharuddin
Datuk Azzat Bin Kamaludin

No. of Board
Meetings
Attended

%

5/5
5/5
4/5
5/5
3/5
5/5

100
100
80
100
60
100

1.6. Appointment and re-election to the Board
Based on the Terms of Reference of Nomination Committee, recommendation of the Nomination Committee
is required for any appointments to the Board. Any new nomination received is forwarded to the Board for
assessment and endorsement.
In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association (“Articles”), all Directors who are appointed by the Board
are subject to re-election at the next Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) after their appointment.
In line with the Articles, Khairil Anuar bin Abdullah (Independent Non-Executive Director) and Ong Hui Peng
(Executive Director), being one-third (1/3) or number nearest to one-third (1/3) of the Directors, will retire from
ofﬁce. Mr. Khairil will not seek re-election while Ms Ong, being eligible, will stand for re-election in the next Annual
General Meeting. In addition, each Director shall retire once in every three (3) years but shall be eligible for reelection.
VisDynamics Holdings Berhad

•

Annual Report 2009

•



Corporate Governance Statement (cont’d)

1.7. Directors’ Training
In accordance with the Terms of Reference, the Nomination Committee is tasked with the responsibility to ensure
all Directors continuously develop themselves through training to equip themselves with the latest development
in the industries and the changes in relevant statutory and regulatory requirements.
During the year, the Directors received updates on the latest industries’ trends and developments through
participation in webcast seminars, reliable internet sources from the CEO as well as reputable research houses’
reports necessary for them to discharge their duties and responsibilities effectively and diligently.
Furthermore, the Directors have been briefed by the Company Secretary on the amendments to the listing
requirements, Companies Act as well as Malaysia Code on Corporate Governance.
Apart from the updates on the industry trend and statutory requirements, all Executive Directors also being
updated with the latest strategy setting method via in-house brieﬁngs conducted from time to time by the Chief
Executive Ofﬁcer.
1.8. Directors’ Remuneration
In order to enhance the stakeholders’ value not only on the short-term but more importantly on the long-term
basis, the Directors’ remuneration policy is structured along that line.
To ensure that all Executive Directors’ remuneration packages are reﬂective of their skills, experiences and
contributions to the Group, their remuneration packages were reviewed and recommended to the Board by the
Remuneration Committee. Furthermore, certain proportion of the remunerations of the Executive Directors is
linked to a set of key performance indexes recommended by the Remuneration Committee and approved by the
Board.
Remuneration package of Non-Executive Directors will be decided by the Board as a whole and reﬂects the
experience and level of responsibilities undertaken by the Non-Executive Directors concerned.
The details of the aggregate remuneration of Directors for the ﬁnancial year ended 31 October 2009 are as follows:
Categories of Remuneration

NIL
220.2
NIL
26
3

66
NIL
7.2
NIL
2.4

Total

249.2

75.6

Executive Director
No. of Directors

Less than RM 50,000
RM 50,000 to RM 99,999
RM 100,000 and more
Total

1

•

Non-Executive Directors
RM ‘000

Director Fees 1
Salary, Bonus and Allowance
Meeting Allowance
Employee Provident Fund
Beneﬁt-in-kind

Remuneration Band



Executive Directors
RM ‘000

NIL
3
NIL

3
NIL
NIL

3

3

To be approved by shareholders in the forthcoming Annual General Meeting
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Corporate Governance Statement (cont’d)

2.

Board Committees
The Board has established a number of Board Committees and delegated to them, speciﬁc duties. In discharging such
responsibilities, these committees work within the remit deﬁned by the terms of reference which state clearly the
extent and limits of their responsibilities and authority. Even with the delegation of its duties by the Board to the Board
Committees, the Board’s duties and responsibilities owed to the stakeholders of the Company remained unchanged.
2.1. Nomination Committee
The Nomination Committee (“NC”) was established primarily for the nomination of the directors and assessment
on the overall effectiveness of the Board as well as individual director’s appraisal. The NC comprises of three (3)
members and the quorum for the NC meeting is two-third (2/3) of the Committee members. It comprises of only
Non-Executive Directors of which a majority of them are independent:
No. Name

Designation

1
2
3

Independent Non-Executive Director
Independent Non-Executive Director
Chairman, Independent Non-Executive Director

Datuk Azzat Bin Kamaludin (Chairman)
Dato’ Nordin Bin Baharuddin
Khairil Anuar Bin Abdullah

Terms of reference of NC are as follows:
1.

Annually review the Board’s required mix of skills, experience, quality and core competencies which NonExecutive Directors should bring to the Board.

2.

Annually assess the effectiveness of the Board as a whole, the Committees of the Board and the contribution
of each individual Director.

3.

Recommend to the Board, candidates for all directorships to be ﬁlled by the shareholders or the Board.

4.

Consider candidates for directorships proposed by the Chief Executive Ofﬁcer and, within the bounds of
practicability, by any other senior executive or any Director or shareholder.

5.

Recommend to the Board, Directors to ﬁll the seats on Board committees.

6.

Consider and recommend suitable persons for appointment as Board members of subsidiary and associate
companies as Group nominees and to annually review their contribution.

7.

Consider and recommend any measures to upgrade the effectiveness of Directors of the Group and its
subsidiary and associate companies.

8.

To ensure that all Directors and senior management receive appropriate continuous training in order to keep
abreast with the industry and with changes in the relevant statutory and regulatory requirements and to be
equipped with the knowledge and skills to contribute effectively to the Board.

9.

Plan for succession to the position of Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Ofﬁcer as well as certain
other senior management positions in the Group. The Chief Executive Ofﬁcer annually provides the Committee
with an assessment of senior managers and their potential.

10.

Establish management development programme for the Company.

11.

Carry out such other assignments as may be delegated by the Board.

The NC has no delegated powers to implement its recommendations and should always report its recommendations
back to the Board for its consideration and approval.
The NC shall meet at least once a year. Additional meetings can be arranged as and when required. The Company
Secretary is the Secretary to the NC.
During the year, the NC held one (1) meeting to consider relevant training for Directors, consider resignation and
re-election of Directors and to review overall effective of the Board and recommendation for the improvements.
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Corporate Governance Statement (cont’d)

2.

Board Committees (cont’d)
2.2. Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Committee (“RC”) is assigned with the duty to assist the Board in the review of remuneration
policy for the Board and recommendation thereof. Remuneration packages of Non-Executive Directors and NonExecutive Chairman should be a matter for the Board as a whole.
The RC consists of three (3) members and the quorum for the Committee meeting is two-third (2/3) of the
Committee members. It comprises of a majority of Non-Executive Directors:
No. Name

Designation

1
2
3

Independent Non-Executive Director
Chairman, Independent Non-Executive Director
Chief Executive Ofﬁcer, Executive Director

Datuk Azzat Bin Kamaludin (Chairman)
Khairil Anuar Bin Abdullah
Choy Ngee Hoe

Terms of reference of RC are as follows:
1.

Review and recommend the general remuneration policy of the Group.

2.

Review and recommend annually the compensation of directors.
a)

Recommend to the Board the remuneration of Chief Executive Ofﬁcer and Executive Directors in all its
forms, drawing from outside advice as necessary.

b)

Remuneration package of Non-Executive Director and Non-Executive Chairman should be a matter
for the Board as a whole. The individuals concerned should abstain from discussion of their own
remuneration.

3.

Review the performance of Chief Executive Ofﬁcer and Executive Directors within the Group.

4.

Recommend the appointment and promotion of top executives within the Group, determine their salaries
and recommend salary revisions and improvements are considered necessary together with fringe beneﬁts,
pre-requisites and bonus programmes.

5.

Recommend suitable incentive plans for Executive Directors and Chief Executive Ofﬁcer based on key
performance indicators to be developed by the Company.

Based on the Terms of Reference, The RC shall meet at least once a year. Additional meetings can be arranged as
and when required. The Company Secretary is the Secretary to the RC.
The RC had held one (1) meeting during the year to recommend remuneration packages of the Directors to the
Board for approval, to review and recommend the remuneration packages of Chief Executive Ofﬁcer for Board’s
approval and to review the proﬁt sharing scheme established for the Executive Directors and key management
staffs and to recommend the same for the Board’s approval.
2.3. Audit Committee
Audit Committee was formed to assist the Board primarily in the review of the quarterly ﬁnancial statements and
audited ﬁnancial statements, to oversee the conduct of the external audit, risk management practice and internal
controls function within the Group. The composition, terms of reference and summary of activities of the Audit
Committee can be found in the Audit Committee Report on page 20 to 23.
2.4. Employee’s Share Option Scheme (“ESOS”) Committee
The administration of the Company’s ESOS was assigned by the Board to the ESOS Committee. The ESOS Committee
consists of only Directors of which majority of them are in executive capacity:
No. Name

Designation

1
2
3

Independent Non-Executive Director
Chief Executive Ofﬁcer, Executive Director
Chief Technical Ofﬁcer, Executive Director

Khairil Anuar Bin Abdullah (Chairman)
Choy Ngee Hoe
Lee Chong Leng

The ESOS Committee has the power to administer the Company’s ESOS scheme in accordance with the ESOS ByLaw as approved by the relevant authorities and for such purposes as the ESOS Committee deems ﬁt.
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3.

Shareholders’ Communications and Investors Relations
With the ﬂush of investment alternatives available and more educated investors nowadays, the roles of investor
relations within the Company are becoming more important as compared previously. The need for the shareholders of
the Company to be updated of all material business affairs concerning the Company has became a basis elements of
investor relations’ efforts. The Company held its Forth Annual General Meeting on 24 April 2009 where active two-ways
communication between the shareholders and the Company was observed. Questions raised by the shareholders were
satisfactorily answered by the Company and all resolutions were passed by the shareholders during the meeting. During
the same day, a separate session with the members of the press and research houses were conducted to brief on the
past performances as well as future plans.
On quarterly basis, the release of quarterly interim ﬁnancial results on Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad’s website
provides relevant valuable updates on the Company’s performance to the shareholders and investors. On annual basis,
annual audited ﬁnancial statements which provide historical ﬁnancial information veriﬁed by the external auditor and
followed by annual report which contains, among others, the review of past performance, future prospects and other
key non-ﬁnancial information was distributed to the shareholders and investment communities. From time to time, the
Company also announced major corporate development within the Group through announcement via Bursa Malaysia
Securities Berhad’s Listing Information Network (“LINK”) to ensure thorough dissemination of important valuable
information throughout the whole market.
Other non-statutory disclosure such as new product launching will be made on a timely basis to keep the shareholders
and investors well informed via announcements, press release and research reports.
Internally, the website of the Group has been upgraded to consolidate all newspaper cuttings, research reports and
announcements to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad into a section dedicated for the Investor Relations. (Website
address: http://visdynamics.com).
The Company is also participating in the Capital Market Development Fund - Bursa Malaysia Research Scheme II where
two research houses in Malaysia initiated research coverage on the Company for a period of two (2) years. Under the
terms of the research scheme, the research houses will, at least, to publish research initiation coverage report, results
coverage report and updates report. Initiation of coverage reports as well as a results update report have been issued
and posted in the eResearch section of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad. (Website address: http://www.bursamalaysia.
com/website/bm/listed_companies/cmdf_bursa_research_scheme/eResearch.jsp)

4.

Accountability and Audit
4.1. Financial Reporting
It is the Board’s responsibility to present a balance and understandable assessment of the Group’s performance
and position in the timely manner to the shareholders via quarterly results announcement and annual audited
ﬁnancial statements. The Audit Committee assists the Board by reviewing and ensuring completeness, accuracy,
adequacy and timeliness of all information to be disclosed.
4.2. Internal Controls
To safeguard the shareholders’ investments and the Group’s assets, the Board is responsible to ensure that the
Group’s systems on internal control are functioning adequately and effectively. The Audit Committee is assigned
by the Board with the duty to review the adequacy and effectiveness of control procedures and report to the Board
on all ﬁndings for deliberation. The internal audit functions are outsourced to independent professional ﬁrm to
provide an independent review and to recommend to the Audit Committee on areas for improvements.
The Statement of Internal Control on page 24 to 25 of this Annual Report provides an overview of the state of
internal controls within the Group.

VisDynamics Holdings Berhad

•

Annual Report 2009

•



Corporate Governance Statement (cont’d)

4.

Accountability and Audit (cont’d)
4.3. Relationship with auditors
The external audit function acts as an independent reviewer for the ﬁnancial statements to form an opinion as to
the true and fair view of the ﬁnancial statements prepared by the Company. External auditors report to members
of the Company on their ﬁndings which are included as part of the Company’s ﬁnancial reports with respect to
each year’s audit in the statutory statements. The external auditors attended all Audit Committee meetings during
the year with the main aim of ensuring proper presentation of interim ﬁnancial statements, to provide professional
opinion on the proper accounting treatments of the underlying transactions, to provide advise on the adoption of
Financial Reporting Standards in the Group’s context, and to highlight to the Audit Committee and the Board on
matters that required their attention.
The Board via the Audit Committee, maintains a formal and transparent professional relationship with the Group’s
auditors, both internal and external.
The roles of the Audit Committee are set out on page 20 to 23 of this Annual Report.
4.4. Relationship with Management
In order to perform their duties effectively and diligently, the Board was updated by the Management with the
latest developments in the industry as well as business operation, both internally and externally, not limited to
the Board’s meeting via management reports as well as through exchange of phone calls and text messages. The
Board believes that it should maintain a close and professional relationship with the key management staff of the
Group.
In order to advance the interests of the Group, Executive Directors consistently carry out their duties and
responsibilities through strategic planning sessions and management meetings scheduled at regular intervals with
the key management staff to chart the Group’s future direction and plan the Group’s ground operations.
4.5. Directors’ Responsibility Statement
The Directors are required by the Companies Act, 1965 to prepare ﬁnancial statements for each ﬁnancial year
which have been made out in accordance with the applicable approved accounting standards and give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and the Company at the end of the ﬁnancial year and of the results and
cash ﬂows of the Group and the Company for the ﬁnancial year.
The Directors are satisﬁed that in preparing the ﬁnancial statements of the Group and of the Company for the
ﬁnancial year ended 31 October 2009, the Group had followed the appropriate accounting policies and applied
them consistently. The Directors are also of the view that relevant approved accounting standards have been
followed in the preparation of these ﬁnancial statements.

5.

Additional Compliance Information
5.1. Status of Utilisation of Proceeds
On 4 April 2006, the Company issued 16,700,000 ordinary shares of RM0.10 each at an issue price of RM0.66 per
ordinary share amounting to RM11,022,000 as an integral part of the listing of and quotation for its entire enlarged
issued and paid-up share capital on the ACE Market of the Bursa Securities.
As at 31 October 2009, the proceeds raised from the Public Issue of RM11,022,000 had been fully utilised.
5.2. Share Buy-Back
During the ﬁnancial year ended 31 October 2009, the Group did not enter into any transaction on share-buyback.
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5.

Additional Compliance Information (cont’d)
5.3. American Depository Receipt (“ADR”) / Global Depository Receipt (“GDR”)
During the ﬁnancial year ended 31 October 2009, the Group did not sponsor any ADR / GDR programme.
5.4. Options, warrants or convertible securities
The Company did not issue any warrants or convertible securities during the ﬁnancial year under review.
5.5. Non-Audit Fees
Apart from the following, there was no other non-audit fee paid to our external auditors, or company afﬁliated to
the external auditors for the ﬁnancial year ended 31 October 2009:
Description of Non-Audit Fee

Amount (RM)

Preparation of tax computations and tax returns

RM 4,500

5.6. Major Contracts
There was no material contract entered into by the Company and its subsidiary involving Directors and major
shareholders’ interests which were subsisting at the end of the ﬁnancial year or if not then subsisting, entered into
since the end of the previous ﬁnancial period.
5.7. Imposition of Sanctions and/or Penalties
There was no sanction and/or penalty imposed on the Company or its subsidiary, Directors or management by any
relevant regulatory bodies for the ﬁnancial year ended 31 October 2009.
5.8. Variation in Results
There was no deviation of 10% or more between the proﬁt after taxation stated in the unaudited fourth quarter
ended 31st October 2009 announced on 23 December 2009 and the audited ﬁnancial statements of the Group for
the ﬁnancial year ended 31 October 2009.
5.9. Proﬁt Guarantee
The Company did not make any arrangement during the ﬁnancial year which requires proﬁt guarantee.
5.10. Revaluation Policy
The Company and its subsidiary did not adopt any revaluation policy on landed properties during the ﬁnancial year.
5.11. Corporate Social Responsibility
Our premises are designed in an environmental friendly manner, with efﬁcient utilization of energy and resources.
Rain water will be collected and utilized for toilets instead of using treated water. The building is also designed to
reduce the consumption of electricity. We have also put facilities to assist physically challenged members of our
society in the navigation and use of our new building.
During the ﬁnancial year, we have recruited undergraduates who were required to fulﬁll their practical training
requirement. Apart from learning the technical skills, those undergraduates had the opportunities to gain an insight
of the Company’s operation and environment and consequently an attraction to join us upon graduation.
Apart from the above, the Company also stands ready to provide scholarship to existing staff members who are
interested in pursuing their education in ﬁelds of interest to the Company.
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Audit Committee Report

The Audit Committee of VisDynamics Holdings Berhad was established by the Board of Directors before its initial public
offering and the eventual listing of its securities on the MESDAQ market of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad on 13 April 2006.
The main objective of the establishment of the Audit Committee (“Committee”) is to provide independent monitoring and
review of the Group’s corporate governance, ﬁnancial reporting, risk management and internal controls.
1.

Members and Attendance of the Committee
During the ﬁnancial year ended 31 October 2009 the Committee met ﬁve (5) times primarily for the review and approval
of unaudited quarterly results and audited ﬁnancial statements, review of risk proﬁles of the Group as well as internal
audit reports and corporate governance assessment prepared by external professional ﬁrms. Details of the activities of
the Committee can be found in Section 2 below.
The details of the attendance of the Committee are as follows:

Minimum no.
of Meetings

No. of
Meetings
attended

%

No. Composition of Committee

Designation

1.

Independent Non-Executive Director

4

3/5

60

Independent Non-Executive Director
Chairman,
Independent Non-Executive Director

4
4

5/5
5/5

100
100

2.
3.

Dato’ Nordin Bin Baharuddin
(Chairman)
Datuk Azzat Bin Kamaludin
Khairil Anuar Bin Abdullah

The meetings were conducted with the quorum of two (2) Committee members and the majority of Committee members
presented at the meeting were independent directors.
The Finance and Administrative Manager, Accountant and a representative of its external auditors attended all the above
ﬁve (5) meetings to assist the Committee in carrying out its duties.
In addition, the Committee had meetings with the external and internal auditors without the presence of the executive
directors and management of the Company to exert its functions independently.
The Company Secretary is the Secretary of the Committee and is responsible, together with the Chairman, to draft the
agenda and circulating it prior to each meeting. The Secretary is also responsible for keeping the minutes of meetings of
the Committee and circulating them to the Committee Members before the Committee’s meeting. It is the Secretary’s
practice to circulate the agenda of the Committee’s meeting and the minutes of the previous Committee’s meeting at
least seven (7) days before the date of the Committee’s meeting to allow ample time for Committee’s member to go
through. The Committee Members may inspect the minutes of the Committee at the Registered Ofﬁce or such other
place as may be determined by the Committee.

2.

Summary of Activities of the Committee During the Year
During the ﬁnancial year ended 31 October 2009, the Committee has carried out the following activities in order to
discharge its duties assigned by the Board of Directors:
2.1.

Review of the interim ﬁnancial statements prepared by the Company for quarterly announcement and to
recommend the same to the Board of Directors for approval for issuance. In order to ensure the reviews were
carried out and recommendations were made satisfactory and diligently, the Committee has, among others,:
2.1.1. received draft quarterly announcements and accompanying notes seven (7) days before the Committee’s
meeting from the management;
2.1.2. obtained overall understanding of the performances of and future prospects of the Group by way of
management brieﬁngs and engagement of constructive discussion with the management;
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2.

Summary of Activities of the Committee During the Year (cont’d)
2.1.3. obtained updates of historical trends of relevant industries compiled by reputable research houses and
industry organizations;
2.1.4. obtained conﬁrmation from the external auditor and management on the compliance of applicable
Financial Reporting Standards, including the presentation of the condensed ﬁnancial statements and the
accompanying notes;
2.1.5. monitored the account receivables and obtained satisfactory explanations from the management on the
long overdue accounts;
2.1.6. received updates on the cash ﬂow position and availability of ﬁnancing facilities and utilization of the such
ﬁnancing facilities; and
2.1.7. obtained assurance from the management on the compliance with statutory requirements and regulations.
2.2. Reviewed the scope and timing of statutory audit by external audit before the commencement of statutory audit
via audit planning memorandum prepared and briefed by the external auditor. The Committee recommended the
audit planning memorandum to Board of Directors for approval after constructive discussion with the external
auditor;
2.3. Reviewed the Audit Completion Memorandum prepared by the external auditor detailing the analysis of the
components of income statements and balance sheet, signiﬁcant audit issues, compliance with Financial Reporting
Standards, access to accounting records and cooperation from the Company in the conduct of the audit. The
Committee recommended to the Board of Directors for approval after obtaining satisfactory explanations and
brieﬁngs from the external auditor and the management.
2.4.

Reviewed related party transactions, if any, entered into by the Company and its subsidiary and there was no
related party transaction made during the ﬁnancial year ended 31 October 2009.

2.5.

Maintained and ensure compliance of the Enterprise Risk Management Report from an independent professional
ﬁrm detailing risk management and responsibility structure, residual risk proﬁles ranked as extreme, high, medium
and low, risk management policy to be adopted by the Group as well as internal audit strategy to be practiced by
the Group.

2.6.

Reviewed the Internal Audit Reports which were tabled during the year, the audit recommendations made and
Management’s response to these recommendations. Where appropriate, the Committee had directed Management
to rectify and improve control and workﬂow procedures based on internal auditors’ recommendations and
suggestions for improvement and, consequently, monitored the corrective actions on the outstanding audit issues
to ensure that all the key risks and control lapses have been addressed.

2.7.

Recommended to the Board of Directors, with the consultation of the management, the external audit fee for the
ﬁnancial year ended 31 October 2009.

2.8. Recommended to the Board of Directors, with the consultation of the management, for the reappointment of
external auditor after they have expressed their willingness to continue as external auditor for the Company.
2.9.

3.

Reviewed the proposed external audit fee for ﬁnancial year ended 31 October 2009 and the fee for the review
of statement of internal control and recommended, in consultation with management, the same to the Board of
Directors for approval.

Statement on Employees’ Share Option (“ESOS”) Scheme by the Committee
There was no allocation of options under the ESOS Scheme during the ﬁnancial year ended 31 October 2009.
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Audit Committee Report (cont’d)

4.

Internal Audit Functions and Activities
The internal audit functions within the Group have been outsourced to an independent professional ﬁrm with expertises
in enterprise risk management, corporate governance as well as internal audit. In order to act independently of the
management, the independent professional ﬁrm reports directly to the Committee and assists the Board in monitoring
the risks and reviewing internal controls system to ensure sound internal system are established and continues to
function effectively and satisfactorily within the Group, after taking into consideration of the practicability of such control
mechanisms.
In the course of conducting the internal audit plan during the ﬁnancial year, the independent professional ﬁrm had
carried out one (1) round of internal audit review concentrating on the strategic management, supply chain management,
purchasing and logistic management, product quality, stock management, ﬁnancial management internal control
management, HR management, regulatory management, safety and health management and general controls. Details of
the internal audits carried out during the ﬁnancial year ended 31 October 2009 may be found to in Statement of Internal
Control in page 24 to 25.

5.

Terms of Reference
5.1. Composition
1.

2.
3.
4.
5.

Members of the Audit Committee shall be from amongst its directors which fulﬁlls the following requirements:
(a)
the Audit Committee must be composed of no fewer than three (3) members;
(b)
all the Audit Committee members must be non-executive directors, with a majority of them being
independent directors; and
(c)
at least one (1) member of the Audit Committee:
(i)
must be a member of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants; or
(ii)
if he is not a member of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants, he must have at least three (3)
years’ working experience and:
(aa) he must have passed the examinations speciﬁed in Part I of the 1st Schedule of the
Accountants Act 1967; or
(bb) he must be a member of one of the associations of accountants speciﬁed in Part II of the
1st Schedule of the Accountants Act 1967; or
(iii) fulﬁlls such other requirements as prescribed or approved by Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.
No alternate director shall be appointed as a member of the Audit Committee.
The members of the Audit Committee shall elect a chairman from among their number who shall be an
independent director.
In the event of any vacancy in the Audit Committee resulting in the non-compliance of the Listing
Requirements, the vacancy must be ﬁlled within three (3) months.
The term of ofﬁce and performance of the Audit Committee and each of its members shall be reviewed by
the Board at least once every three (3) years.

5.2. Rights
The Committee is accorded with the following rights in the performance of its duties and responsibilities:
5.2.1. have authority to investigate any matter within its terms of reference;
5.2.2. have the resources which are required to perform its duties;
5.2.3. have full and unrestricted access to any information pertaining to the Group;
5.2.4. have direct communication channels with the external auditors and person(s) carrying out the internal
audit function or activity;
5.2.5. have the right to obtain independent professional or other advice at the Company’s expense;
5.2.6. have the right to convene meetings with the internal auditors and external auditors, excluding the
attendance of other directors or employees of the Group, whenever deemed necessary;
5.2.7. promptly report to the Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (“Bursa Securities”), or such other name(s) as
may be adopted by Bursa Securities, matters which have not been satisfactorily resolved by the Board of
Directors resulting in a breach of the Listing Requirements;
5.2.8. have the right to pass resolutions by a simple majority vote from the Committee and that the Chairman
shall have the casting vote should a tie arise;
5.2.9. meet as and when required on a reasonable notice; and
5.2.10. the Chairman shall call for a meeting upon the request of the External Auditors.
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Audit Committee Report (cont’d)

5.

Terms of Reference (cont’d)
5.3. Duties
During the ﬁnancial year, the Committee carried out its duties in accordance with its terms of reference:
5.3.1. to review with the external auditors on:
5.3.1.1. the audit plan, its scope and nature;
5.3.1.2. the audit report;
5.3.1.3. the results of their evaluation of the accounting policies and systems of internal accounting
controls within the Group; and
5.3.1.4. the assistance given by the ofﬁcers of the Company to external auditors, including any difﬁculties
or disputes with Management encountered during the audit;
5.3.2. To review the adequacy of the scope, functions, competency and resources and set the standards of the
internal audit function;
5.3.3. to provide assurance to the Board of Directors on the effectiveness of the system of internal control and
risk management practices of the Group;
5.3.4. to review the internal audit programme, processes the results of the internal audit programme, processes
or investigation undertaken and whether or not appropriate action is taken on the recommendations of the
internal audit function.
5.3.5. To review with management:
5.3.5.1. audit reports and management letter issued by the external auditors and the implementation of
audit recommendations;
5.3.5.2. interim ﬁnancial information; and
5.3.5.3. the assistance given by the ofﬁcers of the Company to external auditors;
5.3.6. To monitor related party transactions entered into by the Company or the Group and to determine if such
transactions are undertaken on an arm’s length basis and normal commercial terms and on terms not
more favourable to the related parties than those generally available to the public, and to ensure that the
Directors report such transactions annually to shareholders via the annual report, and to review conﬂicts
of interest that may arise within the Company or the Group including any transaction, procedure or course
of conduct that raises questions of management integrity.
5.3.7. To review the quarterly reports on consolidated results and annual ﬁnancial statements prior to submission
to the Board of Directors; focusing particularly on:
5.3.7.1. changes in or implementation of major accounting policy and practices;
5.3.7.2. signiﬁcant and / or unusual matters arising from the audit;
5.3.7.3. the going concern assumption;
5.3.7.4. compliance with accounting standards and other legal requirements; and
5.3.7.5. major areas.
5.3.8. to consider the appointment and / or re-appointment of auditors, the audit fee and any questions of
resignation or dismissal including recommending the nomination of person or persons as auditors; and
5.3.9. to verify any allocation of options in accordance with the employees share scheme of the Company, at the
end of the ﬁnancial year.
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Statement of Internal Control

Based on the listing requirements of the ACE Market of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad, listed companies are required to
establish an internal audit function within the Company independent of Management. Internal auditors must report to the
Audit Committee directly. This is to ensure that all practical control mechanisms are present to safeguard the shareholders’
investments and the Group’s assets. Furthermore, listed companies are required to publish a statement on the state of
internal control in its annual report.
Responsibility
The Board of Directors (“Board”) is responsible for the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group system of internal controls.
The Board believes that it’s commitment to uphold the spirit of the internal control as compared to the mere compliance with
the listing requirements will cultivate the positive culture within the Group to prevent total corporate failure.
The Board acknowledges that limitations exist in any system of internal control and the internal control system is designed
to mitigate the risks of failure in achieving its business objectives and hence, can only manage to provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.
The Board has established an on-going process for identifying, evaluating and managing the signiﬁcant risks faced by the
Group and this process includes enhancing the system of internal controls when there are changes to business environment
or regulatory guidelines. The process is reviewed by the Board and accords with the guidelines for directors on internal control,
the Statement of Internal Control: Guidance for Directors of Public Listed Companies.
Management assists the Board in the implementation of the Board’s policies and procedures on risk and control by identifying
and assessing the risks faced, and in the design, operation and monitoring of suitable internal controls to mitigate and control
these risks.
The Board is of the view that the system of internal controls in place for the ﬁnancial year under review and up to the date
of issuance of the ﬁnancial statements is sound and sufﬁcient to safeguard the shareholders’ investment, the interests of
customers, regulators and employees, and the Group’s assets.
The Control Structure and Environment
The Group’s internal control mechanism covers not only day-to-day operations but also on the governance of the Group at
the highest level through the Board and various Board Committees. While the Board and its committees are governed by their
respective terms of reference established and are reviewed on an annual basis, Management’s conduct is monitored and
reviewed through operational performance reviews on quarterly basis, risk position reviewed periodically and independent
internal audit conducted by independent professional ﬁrm. The internal control processes are reviewed and updated from time
to time to ensure that they are relevant and effective when responding to changes in circumstances and external environment
and also for further improvement by adopting the best practices, where practical.
The Control Mechanism
The key elements of the Group’s control mechanism is described as follows:



•

A structured assessment on the board effectiveness and individual director’s performance evaluation has been
established for the Board of Directors for evaluation on an annual basis. An assessment of the effectiveness of the Board
of Directors as a whole was conducted by Nomination Committee. The assessment covered value-adding propositions,
compliance, stakeholders’ relationship and performance management and several areas have been identiﬁed for further
improvement which was briefed to the Board of Directors.

•

The internal audit function is outsourced to an independent professional ﬁrm. The internal audit function reports directly
to the Audit Committee. The scope of work under the engagement covered business processes review and independent
review of internal control systems that existed within the Group to assess its adequacy and integrity. Subsequent to the
internal audit exercises, the professional ﬁrm recommended to Management on the areas for further improvement and
sought Management’s actions in response to the ﬁndings. The professional ﬁrm then highlighted to the Audit Committee
signiﬁcant areas for improvement and Management’s response as well as updates on the progress of the improvement
of internal controls within the Group. A large majority of the recommendations of the professional ﬁrm for further
improvement were implemented as at the date of this report.

•
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Statement of Internal Control (cont’d)

The Control Mechanism (cont’d)
During ﬁnancial year ended 31 October 2009, the independent professional ﬁrm has conducted one (1) round of internal control
review concentrating on strategic management, product quality management, supply chain management, purchasing and
logistic, stock management, research and development, ﬁnancial management, sale and marketing management, customer
service, vision software management, machine software management and management information system. During the
course of carrying out their review, the professional ﬁrm was given full cooperation and unrestricted access to all information
necessary to carry out their review.
The fee paid to the professional ﬁrm in respect of internal audit function for the ﬁnancial year ended 31 October 2009 was RM
26,970.
•

Enterprise Risk Management Framework of the Group was established with the assistance of an independent professional
ﬁrm appointed by Audit Committee. With the establishment of the risk proﬁles from the exercise, the Management
managed the risks faced by the Group periodically evaluating existing signiﬁcant risks and identifying new risk, if any,
that might arise through brain-storming sessions among members of the Risk Management Committee (“RMC”). Risk
owners were identiﬁed for all signiﬁcant risks for the purpose of the identiﬁcation and implementation of the mitigation
plan. During the ﬁnancial year, one (1) round of Update of Risk Proﬁle and Risk Registers were presented to the Board of
Directors.

•

The Group practices a budgetary control system whereby a detailed bottom-up budgetary process is carried out
during the last quarter of the ﬁnancial year for forthcoming ﬁnancial year in which all operating units within the Group
prepared annual budget for incorporation into the master budget for the whole Group for the forthcoming ﬁnancial
year. The master budget of the Group was presented to the Board of Directors for their review and approval. Updates
on the budgets may be performed at appropriate interval should there be any changes and development in the Group’s
operating environment and external factor.

For the monitoring of the day-to-day operations, the Group implemented management reporting mechanism whereby the
Group monitors its ﬁnancial performance by comparing its monthly ﬁnancial results against performance in the previous
month and previous corresponding period where material variances are identiﬁed, studied and subject to further improvement
on a regular interval. A set of operational and ﬁnancial performance indexes was developed to act as a monitoring tool as well
as to provide a basis for setting up a realistic yardstick for further improvement. The management reporting system is also
able to provide a mean for the identiﬁcation of irregularity from both operational and ﬁnancial perspective which required the
immediate attention of the Management.
The Board was also being briefed by the Management on the performance of the Group on quarterly basis by way of Review of
Performance Report prepared by the Management. During the presentation of the performance review by the Management,
members of the Board of Directors were provided with unrestricted ﬂow of information for their high level review of the
performance of the Group and all top management staffs of the Group were available to answer any question posed by the
Board for such review.
In order to manage its operation effectively and efﬁciently, regular operation meetings among the key operational management
staff were held focusing on the allocation of responsibility and the monitoring of all key operational issues and projects.
•

Management conducts monthly meetings during the ﬁnancial year ended 31 October 2009 concentrating on the
Company’s goals and performance. There were brainstorming sessions to address each goals and strategies which were
assigned to a member of the Management to ensure its implementation is executed as planned.

•

In terms of reporting and responsibility structure within the Group, the Group has established a formal lean organizational
structure with clearly deﬁned role and line of responsibility, authority and accountability whereby no one person in
the Group is able to abuse his/her position for his/her own beneﬁt to the detriment of the Group. Authority limit are
established within the Group to provide a clear functional framework of authority in approving operational and capital
expenditure.

Conclusion
Overall, the Board is satisﬁed that the process of identifying, evaluating and managing signiﬁcant risks that may affect
achievement of the Group’s business objectives is in place to provide reasonable assurance to that end. It is the Group’s
positive attitude towards striving to become better that drives its desire to make sure the system of internal control will be
enhanced on a regular basis as the Group progress to the next level of development. The Board and Management also seek
regular assurance on the effectiveness and soundness of the internal control system through reviews conducted by the
internal auditors.
VisDynamics Holdings Berhad
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D irectors’Report

The directors hereby submit their report and the audited ﬁnancial statements of the Group and of the Company for the
ﬁnancial year ended 31 October 2009.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The Company is principally engaged in the business of investment holding and the provision of management services. The
principal activity of the subsidiary is set out in Note 6 to the ﬁnancial statements. There have been no signiﬁcant changes in
the nature of these activities during the ﬁnancial year.

RESULTS

Loss attributable to shareholders

THE GROUP
RM

THE COMPANY
RM

(977,625)

(139,146)

DIVIDENDS
No dividend was paid since the end of the previous ﬁnancial year and the directors do not recommend the payment of any
dividend for the current ﬁnancial year.

RESERVES AND PROVISIONS
All material transfers to or from reserves and provisions during the ﬁnancial year are disclosed in the Statements of Changes
in Equity.

ISSUES OF SHARES AND DEBENTURES
During the ﬁnancial year,
(a)

there were no changes in the authorised and issued and paid-up share capital of the Company;

(b)

there were no issues of debentures by the Company.

OPTIONS GRANTED OVER UNISSUED SHARES
During the ﬁnancial year, no options were granted by the Company to any person to take up any unissued shares in the
Company.

EMPLOYEES’ SHARE OPTION SCHEME (“ESOS”)
On 14 January 2005, the Company’s ESOS of up to 10% of the issued and paid-up share capital of the Company, which is
governed by the by-laws, was approved by the shareholders during an extraordinary general meeting and shall be in force for
a period of 10 years.
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D irectors’Report (cont’d)

EMPLOYEES’ SHARE OPTION SCHEME (“ESOS”) (cont’d)
The movements in the share options during the ﬁnancial year are as follows:Date
of Offer

14.1.2005
14.1.2005
14.1.2005

Exercise
period

Exercise price
per ordinary
share

Balance
at
1.11.2008
RM

0.10
0.10
0.10

2,300
5,300
106,000
113,600

13.4.2006
13.4.2007
13.4.2008

During the year
Exercised

Lapsed

Balance
at
31.10.2009

-

-

(46,000)

2,300
5,300
60,000

-

-

(46,000)

67,600

Granted

Options exercisable in a particular year but not exercised can be carried forward to the subsequent years provided they are
exercised prior to the expiry date of the ESOS on 13 April 2015.
Eligible employees who were granted options under the ESOS are as follows:No.

Name of Options Holders

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.
8.

ABD GAPAR BIN OMAR
ABU BAKAR BIN OMAR
LIM KENG HOW
NG MUN HOE
TAI LIN LIN
TAN FUI EE
TOH WEI JIENG
YONG KIN MING

Number of Share Option
12,000
1,000
3,100
13,000
12,000
12,000
7,500
7,000

The salient features of the ESOS are as follows:(a)

any employee (including any persons who have entered into any service contract with the Group) and directors of the
Group are eligible to participate in the scheme, if, as at the offer date, such employee or director has attained the age of
18 years and must have been conﬁrmed for regular employment in the case of an employee;

(b)

the maximum number of new ordinary shares of the Company which may be available under the scheme shall not
exceed in aggregate ten percent (10%) of the total issued and paid-up share capital of the Company at any one time at
the point of granting of the Option(s) during the existence of the Scheme;

(c)

the subscription price for the new ordinary shares will be the higher of the following: -

(d)



•

(i)

the weighted average market price of the shares for the ﬁve (5) Market Days immediately preceding the Offer Date,
with a discount of not more than ten percent (10%) at the Option Committee’s discretion; or

(ii)

the par value of the shares.

the scheme will lapse:(i)

when the eligible employee ceases to be employed by the Group;

(ii)

at the end of ten years from the date the scheme was approved by the shareholders and directors in a general
meeting;

(iii)

in the event of death, insanity or bankruptcy of the eligible employee;
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D irectors’Report (cont’d)

EMPLOYEES’ SHARE OPTION SCHEME (“ESOS”) (CONT’D)
(d)

(e)

the scheme will lapse:- (cont’d)
(iv)

in the event of any misconduct by the eligible employee;

(v)

in the event of any breach of the By-Laws or the ESOS’s terms by the eligible employee;

(vi)

on winding up or liquidation of the Company or Group; and

(vii)

on termination of the ESOS.

the shares to be allotted upon any exercise of any option will upon issue and allotment, rank pari passu in all respects
with the existing issued ordinary shares, except that the shares will not to be entitled to any dividends, rights, allotments
and/or other distribution declared prior to the exercise of the options.

BAD AND DOUBTFUL DEBTS
Before the ﬁnancial statements of the Group and of the Company were made out, the directors took reasonable steps to
ascertain that action had been taken in relation to the writing off of bad debts and the making of allowance for doubtful debts,
and satisﬁed themselves that there are no known bad debts and that no allowance for doubtful debts is required.
At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances that would require the writing off of bad debts, or
the making of allowance for doubtful debts in the ﬁnancial statements of the Group and of the Company.

CURRENT ASSETS
Before the ﬁnancial statements of the Group and of the Company were made out, the directors took reasonable steps to
ascertain that any current assets other than debts, which were unlikely to be realised in the ordinary course of business,
including their value as shown in the accounting records of the Group and of the Company, have been written down to an
amount which they might be expected so to realise.
At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances which would render the values attributed to the
current assets in the ﬁnancial statements of the Group and of the Company misleading.

VALUATION METHODS
At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances which have arisen which render adherence to the
existing methods of valuation of assets or liabilities of the Group and of the Company misleading or inappropriate.

CONTINGENT AND OTHER LIABILITIES
Other than the contingent liabilities as disclosed in Note 35 to the ﬁnancial statements, at the date of this report, there does
not exist:(i)

any charge on the assets of the Group and of the Company that has arisen since the end of the ﬁnancial year which
secures the liabilities of any other person; or

(ii)

any contingent liability of the Group and of the Company which has arisen since the end of the ﬁnancial year.

No contingent or other liability of the Group and of the Company has become enforceable or is likely to become enforceable
within the period of twelve months after the end of the ﬁnancial year which, in the opinion of the directors, will or may
substantially affect the ability of the Group and of the Company to meet their obligations when they fall due.
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D irectors’Report (cont’d)

CHANGE OF CIRCUMSTANCES
At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances not otherwise dealt with in this report or the
ﬁnancial statements of the Group and of the Company which would render any amount stated in the ﬁnancial statements
misleading.

ITEMS OF AN UNUSUAL NATURE
The results of the operations of the Group and of the Company during the ﬁnancial year were not, in the opinion of the
directors, substantially affected by any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature.
There has not arisen in the interval between the end of the ﬁnancial year and the date of this report any item, transaction or
event of a material and unusual nature likely, in the opinion of the directors, to affect substantially the results of the operations
of the Group and of the Company for the ﬁnancial year.

DIRECTORS
The directors who served since the date of the last report are as follows:KHAIRIL ANUAR BIN ABDULLAH
CHOY NGEE HOE
LEE CHONG LENG
ONG HUI PENG
DATO’ NORDIN BIN BAHARUDDIN
DATUK AZZAT BIN KAMALUDIN
Pursuant to Article 69 of the Articles of Association of the Company, Khairil Anuar Bin Abdullah and Ong Hui Peng retire by
rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS
According to the register of directors’ shareholdings, the interests of directors holding ofﬁce at the end of the ﬁnancial year in
shares in the Company and its related corporation during the ﬁnancial year are as follows:NUMBER OF ORDINARY SHARES OF RM0.10 EACH
AT
AT
1.11.2008
BOUGHT
SOLD
31.10.2009
THE COMPANY
DIRECT INTERESTS
CHOY NGEE HOE
DATO’ NORDIN BIN BAHARUDDIN
DATUK AZZAT BIN KAMALUDIN
KHAIRIL ANUAR BIN ABDULLAH
LEE CHONG LENG
ONG HUI PENG

20,351,300
100,000
100,000
786,000
3,036,100
3,036,100

-

-

20,351,300
100,000
100,000
786,000
3,036,100
3,036,100

By virtue of his interest in shares in the Company, Choy Ngee Hoe is deemed to have interest in the shares in the subsidiary to
the extent of the Company’s interest, in accordance with Section 6A of the Companies Act 1965 in Malaysia.
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D irectors’Report (cont’d)

DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS
Since the end of the previous ﬁnancial year, no director has received or become entitled to receive any beneﬁt (other than a
beneﬁt included in the aggregate amount of emoluments received or due and receivable by directors as shown in the ﬁnancial
statements, or the ﬁxed salary of a full-time employee of the Company) by reason of a contract made by the Company or a
related corporation with the director or with a ﬁrm of which the director is a member, or with a company in which the director
has a substantial ﬁnancial interest.
Neither during nor at the end of the ﬁnancial year was the Company a party to any arrangements whose object is to enable
the directors to acquire beneﬁts by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body
corporate.

AUDITORS
The auditors, Messrs. Crowe Horwath (formerly known as Messrs. Horwath), have expressed their willingness to continue in
ofﬁce.

SIGNED IN ACCORDANCE WITH A RESOLUTION OF THE DIRECTORS
DATED 24 FEBRUARY 2010

Choy Ngee Hoe

Lee Chong Leng
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Statement By Directors

We, Choy Ngee Hoe and Lee Chong Leng, being two of the directors of VisDynamics Holdings Berhad, state that, in
the opinion of the directors, the ﬁnancial statements set out on pages 34 to 64 are drawn up in accordance with Financial
Reporting Standards and the Companies Act 1965 in Malaysia so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Group and of the Company at 31 October 2009 and of their results and cash ﬂows for the ﬁnancial year ended on that date.

SIGNED IN ACCORDANCE WITH A RESOLUTION OF THE DIRECTORS
DATED 24 FEBRUARY 2010

Choy Ngee Hoe

Lee Chong Leng

Statutory Declaration

I, Peggy Chek Hong Kim, being the ofﬁcer primarily responsible for the ﬁnancial management of VisDynamics Holdings
Berhad, do solemnly and sincerely declare that the ﬁnancial statements set out on pages 34 to 64 are, to the best of my
knowledge and belief, correct, and I make this solemn declaration conscientiously believing the same to be true, and by virtue
of the provisions of the Statutory Declarations Act 1960.
Subscribed and solemnly declared by
Peggy Chek Hong Kim,
at Melaka in the state of Melaka
on this 24 February 2010

Before me
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Independent Auditors’ Report
To The Members Of Visdynamics Holdings Berhad

Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the ﬁnancial statements of VisDynamics Holdings Berhad, which comprise the balance sheets as at 31
October 2009 of the Group and of the Company, and the income statements, statements of changes in equity and cash ﬂow
statements of the Group and of the Company for the ﬁnancial year then ended, and a summary of signiﬁcant accounting
policies and other explanatory notes, as set out on pages 34 to 64.
Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements
The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these ﬁnancial statements in
accordance with Financial Reporting Standards and the Companies Act 1965 in Malaysia. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of ﬁnancial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies,
and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.
Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these ﬁnancial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the ﬁnancial statements are free from material
misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the ﬁnancial
statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of risks of material misstatement of
the ﬁnancial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant
to the Company’s preparation and fair presentation of the ﬁnancial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the ﬁnancial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufﬁcient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the ﬁnancial statements have been properly drawn up in accordance with Financial Reporting Standards and
the Companies Act 1965 in Malaysia so as to give a true and fair view of the ﬁnancial position of the Group and of the Company
as of 31 October 2009 and of their ﬁnancial performance and cash ﬂows for the ﬁnancial year then ended.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 1965 in Malaysia, we also report the following:(a)

In our opinion, the accounting and other records and the registers required by the Act to be kept by the Company and
its subsidiary have been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act;

(b)

We are satisﬁed that the accounts of the subsidiary that have been consolidated with the Company’s ﬁnancial statements
are in form and content appropriate and proper for the purposes of the preparation of the ﬁnancial statements of the
Group and we have received satisfactory information and explanations required by us for those purposes; and

(c)

Our audit reports on the accounts of the subsidiary did not contain any qualiﬁcation or any adverse comment made
under Section 174(3) of the Act.

Other Matters
This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with Section 174 of the Companies Act
1965 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility to any other person for the content of this report.
Crowe Horwath
Firm No: AF 1018
Chartered Accountants

Tan Lin Chun
Approval No: 2839/10/11 (J)
Partner

Melaka
24 February 2010
VisDynamics Holdings Berhad
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BALANCE SHEETS
At 31 October 2009

NOTE
ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Investment in a subsidiary
Property, plant and equipment
Prepaid land lease payments
Intangible assets
Deferred tax asset

6
7
8
9
10

CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories
Trade receivables
Other receivables, deposits
and prepayments
Amount owing by a subsidiary
Fixed deposits with licensed banks
Tax recoverable
Cash and bank balances

5,484,562
964,135
2,748,787
83,000

4,999,980
-

4,999,980
-

9,543,549

9,280,484

4,999,980

4,999,980

11
12

5,131,735
2,001,355

5,825,630
2,219,556

-

-

13
14
15

197,450
1,283,629
15,397
829,698

260,461
14,160
2,061,971

14,034
7,589,532
1,283,629
14,160
100,271

69,841
9,053,619
14,160
149,441

9,459,264

10,381,778

9,001,626

9,287,061

19,002,813

19,662,262

14,001,606

14,287,041

6,708,760
8,168,901
66,400
281,236

6,708,760
8,168,901
66,400
1,258,861

6,708,760
8,168,901
66,400
(1,160,786)

6,708,760
8,168,901
66,400
(1,021,640)

15,225,297

16,202,922

13,783,275

13,922,421

1,189,974

282,521

-

-

1,189,974

282,521

-

-

768,346
1,390,235
428,961

587,920
2,213,866
375,033

218,331
-

364,620
-

2,587,542

3,176,819

218,331

364,620

3,777,516

3,459,340

218,331

364,620

19,002,813

19,662,262

14,001,606

14,287,041

0.23

0.24

TOTAL ASSETS

17
18

TOTAL EQUITY
NON-CURRENT LIABILITY
Long term borrowings

19

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade payables
Other payables and accruals
Short term borrowings

22
23
24

TOTAL LIABILITIES
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
NET ASSETS PER SHARE (SEN)

25

The annexed notes form an integral part of these ﬁnancial statements.
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THE COMPANY
2009
2008
RM
RM

6,294,505
953,230
2,212,814
83,000

16

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Share capital
Share premium
Share options reserve
Retained proﬁts/(Accumulated losses)

THE GROUP
2009
2008
RM
RM

Annual Report 2009

Income Statements
For The Financial Year Ended 31 October 2009

NOTE
REVENUE

26

THE GROUP
2009
2008
RM
RM

THE COMPANY
2009
2008
RM
RM

3,209,798

9,310,884

360,000

360,000

COST OF SALES

(1,245,074)

(4,983,208)

-

-

GROSS PROFIT

1,964,724

4,327,676

360,000

360,000

256,302

297,215

20,380

-

2,221,026

4,624,891

380,380

360,000

DISTRIBUTION COSTS

(715,038)

(2,672,367)

-

-

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

(961,506)

(1,662,090)

(519,032)

(924,418)

OTHER EXPENSES

(784,086)

(905,208)

-

-

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT EXPENSES

(651,921)

(834,224)

-

-

(69,758)

(42,026)

(494)

(6,902)

OTHER INCOME

FINANCE COSTS
LOSS BEFORE TAXATION

27

(961,283)

(1,491,024)

(139,146)

(571,320)

TAXATION

30

(16,342)

(1,923)

-

-

LOSS AFTER TAXATION

(977,625)

(1,492,947)

(139,146)

(571,320)

ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
Equity holders of the Company

(977,625)

(1,492,947)

(139,146)

(571,320)

(1.46)
-

(2.23)
-

LOSS PER SHARE (SEN)
- BASIC
- DILUTED

31
31

The annexed notes form an integral part of these ﬁnancial statements.
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Statements Of Changes In Equity
For The Financial Year Ended 31 October 2009

NOTE

SHARE
CAPITAL
RM

NON-DISTRIBUTABLE
SHARE
SHARE
OPTIONS
PREMIUM
RESERVE
RM
RM

DISTRIBUTABLE
RETAINED
PROFITS
RM

TOTAL
RM

THE GROUP
At 1 November 2007
Issuance of ordinary shares
Listing expenses
Share options granted
under ESOS
Share options exercised
Loss attributable to shareholders

6,699,760
9,000
-

8,119,056
(155)

89,400
-

2,751,808
-

17,660,024
9,000
(155)

-

50,000
-

27,000
(50,000)
-

(1,492,947)

27,000
(1,492,947)

At 31 October 2008 /
1 November 2008
Loss attributable to shareholders

6,708,760
-

8,168,901
-

66,400
-

1,258,861
(977,625)

16,202,922
(977,625)

At 31 October 2009

6,708,760

8,168,901

66,400

281,236

15,225,297

17

18
18

NOTE

SHARE
CAPITAL
RM

NON-DISTRIBUTABLE
SHARE
SHARE
OPTIONS
PREMIUM
RESERVE
RM
RM

ACCUMULATED
LOSSES
RM

TOTAL
RM

THE COMPANY
At 1 November 2007
Issuance of ordinary shares
Listing expenses

17

6,699,760
9,000
-

8,119,056
(155)

89,400
-

(450,320)
-

14,457,896
9,000
(155)

Share options granted
under ESOS
Share options exercised
Loss after taxation

18
18

-

50,000
-

27,000
(50,000)
-

(571,320)

27,000
(571,320)

At 31 October 2008 /
1 November 2008
Loss after taxation

6,708,760
-

8,168,901
-

66,400
-

(1,021,640)
(139,146)

13,922,421
(139,146)

At 31 October 2009

6,708,760

8,168,901

66,400

(1,160,786)

13,783,275

The annexed notes form an integral part of these ﬁnancial statements.
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Cash Flow Statements
For The Financial Year Ended 31 October 2009

NOTE
CASH FLOWS FROM/(FOR)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before taxation

THE GROUP
2009
2008
RM
RM

THE COMPANY
2009
2008
RM
RM

(961,283)

(1,491,024)

(139,146)

(571,320)

159,476
10,905
4,816
-

196,692
10,904
3,072
9,000

-

-

708,003

409,534

-

-

50,724

144,537
114,062
429,680
26,816

-

6,655

5,234
59,944
(27,659)
(158,599)
-

(1,864)
(155,905)
(127,606)
(4,050)
138,997
27,000

(20,380)
-

5,400

(148,439)
(166,191)
201,104

(270,155)
(265,198)
1,410,325

(159,526)
55,807

(559,265)
40,745

(451,943)

179,529

(146,289)

64,650

CASH (FOR)/FROM OPERATIONS
Tax paid/refunded
Interest paid

(565,469)
(1,237)
(50,724)

1,054,501
10,183
(26,816)

(250,008)
-

(453,870)
14,334
(6,655)

NET CASH (FOR)/FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

(617,430)

1,037,868

(250,008)

(446,191)

BALANCE CARRIED FORWARD

(617,430)

1,037,868

(250,008)

(446,191)

Adjustments for:Amortisation of development expenditure
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments
Amortisation of trademark
Deposit written off
Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment
Development expenditure transferred to
income statement
Development expenditure written off
Equipment written off
Interest expense
Loss/(Gain) on disposal of plant
and equipment
Gain on disposal of investment
Loss/(Gain) on foreign exchange - unrealised
Interest income
Provision for warranty claims
Reversal of provision for warranty claims
Share options granted under ESOS
Operating loss before working
capital changes
Increase in inventories
Decrease in trade and other receivables
(Decrease)/Increase in trade and
other payables
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Cash Flow Statements
For The Financial Year Ended 31 October 2009 (cont’d)

NOTE
BALANCE BROUGHT FORWARD

THE GROUP
2009
2008
RM
RM
(617,430)

1,037,868

(250,008)

(446,191)

27,659

4,050

20,380

-

125,554
655,905
(147,651)
(259,719)

(4,000,516)
(192,540)

-

-

4,650

6,340

-

-

(249,507)

(3,526,761)

20,380

-

CASH FLOWS FROM/(FOR)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
(Repayment)/Drawdown of banker acceptance
Drawdown of term loan
Proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares
Net advances to a subsidiary
Listing expenses
Repayment of hire purchase obligations
Repayment of term loan

(263,000)
1,500,000
(43,943)
(231,676)

263,000
124,200
9,000
(155)
(42,677)
(281,283)

1,464,087
-

9,000
(2,250,840)
(155)
-

NET CASH FROM/(FOR) FINANCING ACTIVITIES

961,381

72,085

1,464,087

(2,241,995)

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

94,444

(2,416,808)

1,234,459

(2,688,186)

EFFECTS OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE
RATE CHANGES

(43,088)

63,332

-

-

2,061,971

4,415,447

149,441

2,837,627

2,113,327

2,061,971

1,383,900

149,441

CASH FLOWS (FOR)/FROM
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received
Government grant received for
development expenditure
Proceeds from disposal of investment
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Payments for development expenditure
Proceeds from disposal of plant and
equipment

32

NET CASH (FOR)/FROM
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT BEGINNING OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR

33

The annexed notes form an integral part of these ﬁnancial statements.
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Notes To The Financial Statements
At 31 October 2009

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION
The Company is a public company limited by shares and is incorporated under the Companies Act 1965 in Malaysia. The
domicile of the Company is Malaysia. The registered ofﬁce and principal place of business are as follows:Registered ofﬁce

:

10th ﬂoor, Menara Hap Seng
No 1 & 3 Jalan P. Ramlee
50250 Kuala Lumpur

Principal place of business

:

Lot 3844, Jalan TU 52
Kawasan Perindustrian Tasik Utama
Ayer Keroh, 75450 Melaka

The ﬁnancial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors in accordance with a resolution of the
directors dated 24 February 2010.

2.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The Company is principally engaged in the business of investment holding and the provision of management services.
The principal activity of the subsidiary is set out in Note 6 to the ﬁnancial statements. There have been no signiﬁcant
changes in the nature of these activities during the ﬁnancial year.

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES
The Group’s ﬁnancial risk management policy seeks to ensure that adequate ﬁnancial resources are available for the
development of the Group’s business whilst managing its market, credit, liquidity and cash ﬂow risks. The policies in
respect of the major areas of treasury activity are as follows:(a)

Market Risk
(i)

Foreign Currency Risk
The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk on sales and purchases that are denominated in currencies
other than Ringgit Malaysia.
The Group manages its foreign exchange exposure by a policy of matching as far as possible receipts and
payments in each individual currency.
Foreign exchange exposure is monitored closely and kept to an acceptable level.

(ii)

Interest Rate Risk
The Group obtains ﬁnancing through bank borrowings and hire purchase arrangements. The Group’s policy
is to obtain the most favourable interest rates available.
Information relating to the Group’s interest rate exposure is disclosed in the notes on borrowings, including
hire purchase payables.

(iii)

Price Risk
The Group does not have any quoted investments and hence is not exposed to price risk.
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Notes To The Financial Statements
At 31 October 2009 (cont’d)

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONT’D)
(b)

Credit Risk
Credit risks, or the risk of counterparties defaulting, are controlled by the application of credit approvals, limits and
monitoring procedures. Credit risks are minimised by monitoring receivables regularly and by mostly trading with
reputable and creditworthy customers.
The carrying amounts of trade receivables and other receivables represent the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk in relation to ﬁnancial assets. No other ﬁnancial assets carry a signiﬁcant exposure to credit risk.
The Group does not have any major concentration of credit risk related to any individual customer or counterparty.

(c)

Liquidity and Cash Flow Risks
The Group manages its debt proﬁle, operating cash ﬂows and the availability of funding so as to ensure that all
reﬁnancing, repayment and funding needs are met. As part of its overall prudent liquidity management, the Group
maintains sufﬁcient levels of cash or cash convertible investments and the continuing ﬁnancial support from its
bankers to meet its working capital requirements.

4.

BASIS OF PREPARATION
The ﬁnancial statements of the Group and of the Company are prepared under the historical cost convention and
modiﬁed to include other bases of valuation as disclosed in other sections under signiﬁcant accounting policies, and in
compliance with Financial Reporting Standards (“FRS”) and the Companies Act 1965 in Malaysia.
The Group has not adopted the following FRSs and Issues Committee (“IC”) Interpretations that have been issued as at
the date of authorisation of these ﬁnancial statements but are not yet effective for the Group:
(i)

FRS issued and effective for ﬁnancial periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009:
FRS 8

Operating Segments

FRS 8 replaces FRS 1142004 Segment Reporting and requires a “management approach”, under which segment
information is presented on the same basis as that used for internal reporting purposes. The adoption of this
standard only impacts the form and content of disclosures presented in the ﬁnancial statements of the Group. This
FRS is expected to have no material impact on the ﬁnancial statements of the Group upon its initial application.
(ii)

FRSs issued and effective for ﬁnancial periods beginning on or after 1 January 2010:
FRS 4
FRS 7
Revised FRS 101 (2009)
Revised FRS 123 (2009)
Revised FRS 139 (2010)

Insurance Contracts
Financial Instruments: Disclosures
Presentation of Financial Statements
Borrowing Costs
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement

FRS 4 is not relevant to the Group’s operations. The possible impacts of FRS 7 and revised FRS 139 (2010) on the
ﬁnancial statements upon their initial applications are not disclosed by virtue of the exemptions given in these
standards. The adoption of the revised FRS 101 (2009) only impacts the form and content of disclosures presented
in the ﬁnancial statements of the Group. Revised FRS 123 (2009) is not relevant to the Group’s operations.
(iii)

Amendments issued and effective for ﬁnancial periods beginning on or after 1 January 2010:
Amendments to FRS 1
and FRS 127
Amendments to FRS 2
Amendments to FRS 7, FRS 132
and IC Interpretation 9
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Notes To The Financial Statements
At 31 October 2009 (cont’d)

4.

BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONT’D)
(iii)

Amendments issued and effective for ﬁnancial periods beginning on or after 1 January 2010 (Cont’d):
Amendments to 21 FRSs

Annual Improvements to FRSs (2009)

Amendments to FRS 1 and FRS 127 are not relevant to the Group’s operations.
The amendments to FRS 2 clarify that vesting conditions under a share based payment are service conditions and
performance conditions only and do not include other features of a share based payment. The amendments also
clarify that cancellations on share based payment by parties other than the entity are to be treated in the same
way as cancellations by an entity. These amendments are expected to have no material impact on the ﬁnancial
statements of the Group upon their initial application.
The possible impacts of amendments to FRS 7, FRS 132 and IC Interpretation 9 on the ﬁnancial statements upon
their initial applications are not disclosed by virtue of the exemptions given in these standards.
Improvements to FRSs (2009) contained amendments to 21 FRSs. Some of the improvements involve accounting
changes to presentation, recognition or measurement whilst some are changes to terminology with little effect on
accounting. These amendments are expected to have no material impact on the ﬁnancial statements of the Group
upon their initial application.
(iv)

IC Interpretations issued and effective for ﬁnancial periods beginning on or after 1 January 2010:
IC Interpretation 9
IC Interpretation 10
IC Interpretation 11
IC Interpretation 13
IC Interpretation 14

Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives
Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment
FRS 2: Group and Treasury Share Transactions
Customer Loyalty Programmes
FRS 119: The Limit on a Deﬁned Beneﬁt Asset, Minimum Funding Requirements and their
Interaction

The above IC Interpretations are not relevant to the Group’s operations except for IC Interpretation 10. IC
Interpretation 10 prohibits the impairment losses recognised in an interim period on goodwill, investments in
equity instruments and ﬁnancial assets carried at cost to be reversed at a subsequent balance sheet date. This
interpretation is expected to have no material impact on the ﬁnancial statements of the Group upon its initial
application.
(v)

IC Interpretations issued and effective for ﬁnancial periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010:
IC Interpretation 12
IC Interpretation 15
IC Interpretation 16
IC Interpretation 17

Service Concession Arrangements
Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate
Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation
Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners

The above IC Interpretations are not relevant to the Group’s operations.

5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a)

Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated by the directors and management and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances. The estimates and judgements that affect the application of the Group’s and the Company’s
accounting policies and disclosures, and have a signiﬁcant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses are discussed below:-
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Notes To The Financial Statements
At 31 October 2009 (cont’d)

5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
(a)

Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements (Cont’d)
(i)

Depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment
The estimates for the residual values, useful lives and related depreciation charges for the property, plant
and equipment are based on commercial and production factors which could change signiﬁcantly as a result
of technical innovations and competitor’s actions in response to the market conditions.
The Group anticipates that the residual values of its property, plant and equipment will be insigniﬁcant. As a
result, residual values are not being taken into consideration for the computation of the depreciable amount.
Changes in the expected level of usage and commercial factors could impact the economic useful lives and
the residual values of these assets, therefore future depreciation charges could be revised.

(ii)

Income Taxes
There are certain transactions and computations for which the ultimate tax determination may be different
from the initial estimate. The Group recognises tax liabilities based on its understanding of the prevailing tax
laws and estimates of whether such taxes will be due in the ordinary course of business. Where the ﬁnal
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially recognised, such difference will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the year in which such determination is made.

(iii)

Impairment of Assets
When the recoverable amount of an asset is determined based on the estimate of the value-in-use of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset is allocated, the Group is required to make an estimate of the
expected future cash ﬂows from the cash-generating unit and also to apply a suitable discount rate in order
to determine the present value of those cash ﬂows.

(iv)

Allowance for Doubtful Debts of Receivables
The Group makes allowance for doubtful debts based on an assessment of the recoverability of receivables.
Allowances are applied to receivables where events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. Management speciﬁcally analyses historical bad debt, customer
concentrations, customer creditworthiness, current economic trends and changes in customer payment
terms when making a judgement to evaluate the adequacy of the allowance for doubtful debts of receivables.
Where the expectation is different from the original estimate, such difference will impact the carrying value
of receivables.

(v)

Amortisation of development cost
Changes in the expected level of usage and technological development could impact the economic useful
lives, therefore future amortisation charges could be revised.

(vi)

Fair Value Estimates for Certain Financial Assets and Liabilities
The Group carries certain ﬁnancial assets and liabilities at fair value, which require extensive use of accounting
estimates and judgement. While signiﬁcant components of fair value measurement were determined using
veriﬁable objective evidence, the amount of changes in fair value would differ if the Group uses different
valuation methodologies. Any changes in fair value of these assets and liabilities would affect proﬁt and
equity.
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Notes To The Financial Statements
At 31 October 2009 (cont’d)

5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
(b)

Financial Instruments
Financial instruments are recognised in the balance sheet when the Group has become a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments.
Financial instruments are classiﬁed as liabilities or equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangement. Interest, dividends, gains and losses relating to a ﬁnancial instrument classiﬁed as a liability, are
reported as an expense or income. Distributions to holders of ﬁnancial instruments classiﬁed as equity are charged
directly to equity.
Financial instruments are offset when the Group has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends to settle
either on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
Financial instruments recognised in the balance sheet are disclosed in the individual policy statement associated
with each item.

(c)

Functional and Foreign Currency
(i)

Functional and Presentation Currency
The functional currency of the Company and each of the Group’s entity is measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the Company or that entity operates.
The consolidated ﬁnancial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia (“RM”) which is also the Company’s
functional and presentation currency.

(ii)

Transactions and Balances
Transactions in foreign currency are converted into RM at the approximate rates of exchange ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities at the balance sheet date are translated at the rates ruling
as of that date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities are translated using exchange rates that existed when
the values were determined. All exchange differences are taken to the income statement.

(d)

Basis of Consolidation
The consolidated ﬁnancial statements include the ﬁnancial statements of the Company and its subsidiary made up
to 31 October 2009.
A subsidiary is deﬁned as a company in which the parent company has the power, directly or indirectly, to exercise
control over its ﬁnancial and operating policies so as to obtain beneﬁts from its activities.
All subsidiaries are consolidated using the purchase method. Under the purchase method, the results of the
subsidiaries acquired or disposed off are included from the date of acquisition or up to the date of disposal. At the
date of acquisition, the fair values of the subsidiaries’ net assets are determined and these values are reﬂected in
the consolidated ﬁnancial statements. The cost of acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the fair values, at
the date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity instruments issued by the Group
in exchange for control of the acquiree, plus any costs directly attributable to the business combination.
Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions are eliminated; unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless cost cannot be recovered. Where necessary, adjustments are made to the ﬁnancial statements
of subsidiaries to ensure consistency of accounting policies with those of the Group.
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Notes To The Financial Statements
At 31 October 2009 (cont’d)

5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
(e)

Goodwill on Consolidation
Goodwill on consolidation represents the excess of the fair value of the purchase consideration over the Group’s
share of the fair values of the identiﬁable net assets of the subsidiaries at the date of acquisition.
Goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. The carrying value of goodwill is reviewed
for impairment annually, or whenever there are circumstances which indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. The impairment value of goodwill is recognised immediately in the consolidated income statement. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.
If, after reassessment, the Group’s interest in the fair values of the identiﬁable net assets of the subsidiaries
exceeds the cost of the business combinations, the excess is recognised immediately in the consolidated income
statement.

(f)

Investments in Subsidiaries
Investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost in the balance sheet of the Company, and are reviewed for impairment
at the end of the ﬁnancial year if events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying values may not
be recoverable.
On the disposal of the investments in subsidiaries, the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the investments is taken to the income statement.

(g)

Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any.
Depreciation is calculated under the straight-line method to write off the depreciable amount of the assets over
their estimated useful lives. Depreciation of an asset does not cease when the asset becomes idle or is retired
from active use unless the asset is fully depreciated. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are:Building
Plant and machinery
Furniture, ﬁtting and electrical installation
Motor vehicle
Computer equipment

2% - 4%
10% - 20%
10% - 33.33%
20%
20% - 33.33%

The depreciation method, useful life and residual values are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance
sheet date to ensure that the amount, method and period of depreciation are consistent with previous estimates
and the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic beneﬁts embodied in the items of the property,
plant and equipment.
Capital work-in-progress represents assets under construction, and which are not ready for commercial use at the
balance sheet date. Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost, and will be transferred to the relevant category of
long term assets and depreciated accordingly when the assets are completed and ready for commercial use.
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic beneﬁts are
expected from its use. Any gain or loss arising from derecognition of the asset is included in the income statement
in the year the asset is derecognised.
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Notes To The Financial Statements
At 31 October 2009 (cont’d)

5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
(h)

Impairment of Assets
The carrying values of assets, other than ﬁnancial assets, inventories, goodwill on consolidation and deferred
tax assets, are reviewed at each balance sheet date for impairment when there is an indication that the assets
might be impaired. Impairment is measured by comparing the carrying values of the assets with their recoverable
amounts. Recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s net selling price and its value in use which is measured
by reference to discounted future cash ﬂow.
An impairment loss is charged to the income statement immediately unless the asset is carried at its revalued
amount. Any impairment loss of a revalued asset is treated as a revaluation decrease to the extent of any unutilised
previously recognised revaluation surplus for the same asset.
In respect of assets other than goodwill, and when there is a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount, a subsequent increase in the recoverable amount of an asset is treated as a reversal of the
previous impairment loss and is recognised to the extent of the carrying amount of the asset that would have
been determined (net of amortisation and depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised. The reversal is
recognised in the income statement immediately, unless the asset is carried at its revalued amount. A reversal of
an impairment loss on a revalued asset is credited directly to the revaluation surplus. However, to the extent that
an impairment loss on the same revalued asset was previously recognised as an expense in the income statement,
a reversal of that impairment loss is recognised as income in the income statement.

(i)

Prepaid Land Lease Payments
The prepaid land lease payments comprise the up-front payments made for the leasehold interest in land and are
amortised on a straight line basis over the lease terms.

(j)

Assets under Hire Purchase
Plant and equipment acquired under hire purchase are capitalised in the ﬁnancial statements and are depreciated
in accordance with the policy set out in Note 5(g) above. Each hire purchase payment is allocated between the
liability and ﬁnance charges so as to achieve a constant rate on the ﬁnance balance outstanding. Finance charges
are allocated to the income statement over the period of the respective hire purchase agreements.

(k)

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined using the standard cost
basis, which approximates the actual costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition. Cost of ﬁnished goods and work-in-progress includes the cost of materials, labour and an appropriate
proportion of production overheads.
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.

(l)

Receivables
Receivables are carried at anticipated realisable value. Bad debts are written off in the period in which they are
identiﬁed. An estimate is made for doubtful debts based on a review of all outstanding amounts at the balance
sheet date.

(m) Research and Development Expenditure
Research expenditure is recognised as an expense when it is incurred.
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Notes To The Financial Statements
At 31 October 2009 (cont’d)

5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
(m) Research and Development Expenditure (Cont’d)
Development expenditure is recognised as an expense except that expenditure incurred on development projects
are capitalised as long-term assets to the extent that such expenditure is expected to generate future economic
beneﬁts. Development expenditure is capitalised if, and only if an entity can demonstrate all of the following:(i)

its ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the asset under development;

(ii)

the product or process is technically and commercially feasible;

(iii)

its future economic beneﬁts are probable;

(iv)

its ability to use or sell the developed asset; and

(v)

the availability of adequate technical, ﬁnancial and other resources to complete the asset under development.

Capitalised development expenditure is measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses,
if any. Development expenditure initially recognised as an expense are not recognised as assets in the subsequent
period.
The development expenditure is amortised on a straight-line method over a period of not exceeding 5 years when
the products are ready for sale or use. In the event that the expected future economic beneﬁts are no longer
probable of being recovered, the development expenditure is written down to its recoverable amount.
(n)

Trademarks
Trademarks are stated at cost less any impairment losses and are amortised using the straight-line basis over the
commercial lives of the underlying products not exceeding 10 years.

(o)

Payables
Payables are stated at cost which is the fair value of the consideration to be paid in the future for goods and
services received.

(p)

Income Taxes
Income taxes for the year comprises current and deferred tax.
Current tax is the expected amount of income taxes payable in respect of the taxable proﬁt for the period and is
measured using the tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.
Deferred taxation is provided for, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the ﬁnancial statements.
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences other than those that arise from
goodwill or excess of the acquirer’s interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identiﬁable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities over the business combination cost or from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in
a transaction which is not a business combination and at the time of the transaction, affects neither accounting
proﬁt nor taxable proﬁt.
Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax
credits to the extent that it is probable that future taxable proﬁt will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits can be utilised.
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Notes To The Financial Statements
At 31 October 2009 (cont’d)

5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
(p)

Income Taxes (Cont’d)
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on the tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date.
Deferred tax is recognised in the income statement, except when it arises from a transaction which is recognised
directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax is also charged or credited directly in equity, or when it arises from
a business combination that is an acquisition, in which case the deferred tax is included in the resulting goodwill or
excess of the acquirer’s interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identiﬁable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities over the business combination cost. The carrying amounts of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each
balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufﬁcient future taxable proﬁts will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be utilised.

(q)

Interest-bearing Bank Borrowings
Interest-bearing bank borrowings are recorded at the amount of proceeds received, net of transaction costs.
All borrowing costs are charged to the income statement as expenses in the period in which they are incurred.

(r)

Equity Instruments
Ordinary shares are classiﬁed as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or
options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax from proceeds.
Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised as liabilities when approved for appropriation.

(s)

Segmental Information
Segment revenues and expenses are those directly attributable to the segments and include any joint revenue
and expenses where a reasonable basis of allocation exists. Segment assets include all assets used by a segment
and consist principally of property, plant and equipment (net of accumulated depreciation, where applicable),
inventories, receivables, and cash and bank balances.
Most segment assets can be directly attributed to the segments on a reasonable basis. Segment assets and
liabilities do not include income tax assets and liabilities respectively.
Segment revenues, expenses and results include transfers between segments. The prices charged on intersegment transactions are based on normal commercial terms. These transfers are eliminated on consolidation.

(t)

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, bank balances, demand deposits, deposits pledged with
ﬁnancial institutions, bank overdrafts and short term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insigniﬁcant risk of changes in value.

(u)

Employee Beneﬁts
(i)

Short-term Beneﬁts
Wages, salaries, paid annual leave, bonuses and non-monetary beneﬁts are accrued in the period in which
the associated services are rendered by employees of the Group.
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Notes To The Financial Statements
At 31 October 2009 (cont’d)

5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
(u)

Employee Beneﬁts (Cont’d)
(ii)

Deﬁned Contribution Plans
The Group’s contributions to deﬁned contribution plans are charged to the income statement in the period
to which they relate. Once the contributions have been paid, the Group has no further liability in respect of
the deﬁned contribution plans.

(iii)

Share-based payment transactions
At grant date, the fair value of options granted to employees is recognised as an employee expense, with a
corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which the employees become unconditionally entitled to
the options. The amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to reﬂect the actual number of share options
that are expected to vest.

(v)

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation as a result of past events, when it is probable
that an outﬂow of resources embodying economic beneﬁts will be required to settle the obligation, and when a
reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to
reﬂect the current best estimate. Where effect of the time value of money is material, the provision is the present
value of the estimated expenditure required to settle the obligation.

(w) Related Parties
A party is related to an entity if:(i)

directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, the party:•
controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with, the entity (this includes parents, subsidiaries
and fellow subsidiaries);
•
has an interest in the entity that gives it signiﬁcant inﬂuence over the entity; or
•
has joint control over the entity;

(ii)

the party is an associate of the entity;

(iii)

the party is a joint venture in which the entity is venturer,

(iv)

the party is a member of the key management personnel of the entity or its parent;

(v)

the party is a close member of the family of any individual referred to in (i) or (iv);

(vi)

the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled or signiﬁcantly inﬂuenced by, or for which signiﬁcant
voting power in such entity resides with, directly or indirectly, any individual referred to in (iv) or (v); or

(vii)

the party is a post-employment beneﬁt plan for the beneﬁt of employees of the entity, or of any entity that
is a related party of the entity.

Close members of the family of an individual are those family members who may be expected to inﬂuence, or be
inﬂuenced by, that individual in their dealings with the entity.
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5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
(x)

Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will only be
conﬁrmed by the occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group and
the Company. It can also be a present obligation arising from past events that is not recognised because it is not
probable that an outﬂow of economic resources will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be measured
reliably.
A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to the ﬁnancial statements. When a change in
the probability of an outﬂow occurs so that the outﬂow is probable, it will then be recognised as a provision.
A contingent asset is a probable asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be conﬁrmed only by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain events not wholly within the control of the Group and
the Company.

(y)

Revenue Recognition
(i)

Sale of Goods
Sales are recognised upon delivery of goods and customers’ acceptance and where applicable, net of returns
and trade discounts.

(ii)

Interest Income
Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis, based on the effective yield on the investment.

(iii)

Management Fees
Management fees from subsidiaries are accounted for on an accrual basis.

6.

INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY
THE COMPANY
2009
2008
RM
RM
Unquoted shares, at cost

4,999,980

4,999,980

Details of the subsidiary, which is incorporated in Malaysia, are as follows:-

Name of Company

Effective Equity
Interest
2009
2008

Principal Activity

VisDynamics Research Sdn. Bhd.

100%

Manufacturer of automated test equipment

100%
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62,492
(700)
(569)
(497,548)

243,223
700
368,778
460,520
1,050,833

2,327,736

Total

-

415,924
20,401

203,682

RECLASSIFICATION
RM

-

113,554
(113,554)

-

RECLASSIFICATION
RM

Building
Plant and machinery
Furniture, ﬁtting and
electrical installation
Forklift
Motor vehicle
Computer equipment
Capital work-in-progress

THE GROUP

5,484,562

Total

NET BOOK
VALUE AS AT
1.11. 2007
RM

1,436,677
293,168
317,135
357,787

2,768,920
310,875

Building
Plant and machinery
Furniture, ﬁtting and
electrical installation
Motor vehicle
Computer equipment
Capital work-in-progress

THE GROUP

NET BOOK
VALUE AS AT
1.11. 2008
RM

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

4,000,516

1,276,833
3,150
66,721
155,340

2,357,792
140,680

ADDITIONS
RM

147,651

54,065
1,780
89,236

2,570

ADDITIONS
RM

(4,476)

(4,419)
(57)
-

-

DISPOSAL
RM

1,380,179

(333,469)

1,713,648

TRANSFER (TO)/
FROM INVENTORY/
DEVELOPMENT
EXPENDITURE
RM

(429,680)

(78,842)
(350,838)

-

WRITTEN
OFF
RM

(9,884)

(9,884)
-

-

DISPOSAL
RM

(409,534)

(62,610)
(78,760)
(209,480)
-

(4,796)
(53,888)

DEPRECIATION
CHARGE
RM

(708,003)

(196,386)
(79,285)
(162,719)
-

(57,555)
(212,058)

DEPRECIATION
CHARGE
RM

5,484,562

1,436,677
293,168
317,135
357,787

2,768,920
310,875

NET BOOK
VALUE AS AT
31.10. 2008
RM

6,294,505

1,284,472
213,883
269,750
-

2,711,365
1,815,035

NET BOOK
VALUE AS AT
31.10. 2009
RM

Notes To The Financial Statements

At 31 October 2009 (cont’d)

Notes To The Financial Statements
At 31 October 2009 (cont’d)

7.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONT’D)
ACCUMULATED
DEPRECIATION
RM

NET BOOK
VALUE
RM

AT 31 OCTOBER 2009

AT COST
RM

Building
Plant and machinery
Furniture, ﬁttings and electrical installation
Motor vehicles
Computer equipment

2,773,716
2,184,205
1,589,595
396,426
941,254

(62,351)
(369,170)
(305,123)
(182,543)
(671,504)

2,711,365
1,815,035
1,284,472
213,883
269,750

Total

7,885,196

(1,590,691)

6,294,505

AT 31 OCTOBER 2008

AT COST
RM

Building
Plant and machinery
Furniture, ﬁttings and electrical installation
Motor vehicles
Computer equipment
Capital work-in-progress

2,773,716
511,441
1,560,530
396,426
825,920
357,787

(4,796)
(200,566)
(123,853)
(103,258)
(508,785)
-

2,768,920
310,875
1,436,677
293,168
317,135
357,787

Total

6,425,820

(941,258)

5,484,562

ACCUMULATED
DEPRECIATION
RM

NET BOOK
VALUE
RM

Included in property, plant and equipment are certain computer equipment and building with a carrying value of
RM2,711,365 (2008 – RM2,768,920) which have been pledged to a ﬁnancial institution as security for banking facilities
granted to the Group.
The motor vehicle of the Group acquired under hire purchase terms was carried at net book value of RM196,362 (2008
- RM267,767) at the balance sheet date.

8.

PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS
THE GROUP
2009
2008
RM
RM
Balance at 1 November
Amortisation for the year

964,135
(10,905)

975,039
(10,904)

Balance at 31 October

953,230

964,135

953,230

964,135

Analysed as:
Long term leasehold land

The leasehold land above has been charged to a ﬁnancial institution for banking facilities granted to the Group.
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Notes To The Financial Statements
At 31 October 2009 (cont’d)

9.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

GOODWILL
RM

DEVELOPMENT
COSTS
RM

Balance at 1 November 2007
Additions during the ﬁnancial year
Written off during the ﬁnancial year
Transfer to Income Statement

1,576,446
-

1,644,307
192,540
(114,641)
(144,537)

28,189
-

3,220,753
220,729
(114,641)
(144,537)

Balance at 31 October 2008 / 1 November 2008

1,576,446

1,577,669

28,189

3,182,304

-

259,719
(125,554)
(520,092)

14,246
-

273,965
(125,554)
(520,092)

1,576,446

1,191,742

42,435

2,810,623

Balance at 1 November 2007
Amortisation during the ﬁnancial year
Written off during the ﬁnancial year

-

234,332
196,692
(579)

3,072
-

234,332
199,764
(579)

Balance at 31 October 2008 / 1 November 2008

-

430,445

3,072

433,517

Amortisation during the ﬁnancial year

-

159,476

4,816

164,292

Balance at 31 October 2009

-

589,921

7,888

597,809

Balance at 31 October 2008

1,576,446

1,147,224

25,117

2,748,787

Balance at 31 October 2009

1,576,446

601,821

34,547

2,212,814

BRANDS
RM

TOTAL
RM

Cost:-

Additions during the ﬁnancial year
Grant received
Transfer to Property, Plant and Equipment
Balance at 31 October 2009

Accumulated amortisation:-

Net book value:-

(i)

Development costs
The amount transfer to income statement of RM NIL (2008 – RM144,537) is in respect of prototype units sold during
the ﬁnancial year.

(ii)

Goodwill
Key assumptions used is value-in-use calculations
The recoverable amount of a cash-generating unit (“CGU”) is determined based on value-in-use calculations using
cash ﬂow projections based on ﬁnancial budgets approved by management covering a ﬁve-year period. The key
assumptions used for value-in-use calculations are based on past experience and the discount rate applied to the
cash ﬂow projections is 8%.
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At 31 October 2009 (cont’d)

10.

DEFERRED TAX ASSET
THE GROUP
2009
2008
RM
RM
Balance at 31 October

83,000

83,000

83,000

83,000

Deferred tax asset arises as a result of:Tax incentive

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following items:

Unused tax loses
Unabsorbed capital and industrial
building allowances
Others

11.

THE GROUP
2009
2008
RM
RM

THE COMPANY
2009
2008
RM
RM

477,000

490,000

477,000

490,000

1,978,000
-

963,000
568,000

-

-

2,455,000

2,021,000

477,000

490,000

INVENTORIES
THE GROUP
2009
2008
RM
RM
At cost:Raw materials
Work-in-progress
Finished goods

1,729,267
1,098,850
2,303,618

1,374,106
2,442,122
2,009,402

5,131,735

5,825,630

None of the inventories is carried at net realisable value.

12.

TRADE RECEIVABLES
The Group’s normal trade credit terms range from 30 to 90 days. Other credit terms are assessed and approved on a
case-by-case basis.
The foreign currency exposure proﬁle of trade receivables is as follows:THE GROUP
2009
2008
RM
RM
US Dollar

1,481,997

VisDynamics Holdings Berhad

•

1,608,458

Annual Report 2009

•



Notes To The Financial Statements
At 31 October 2009 (cont’d)

13.

OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
THE GROUP
2009
2008
RM
RM
Other receivables
Deposits
Prepayments

14.

THE COMPANY
2009
2008
RM
RM

19,858
49,635
127,957

20,458
64,684
175,319

14,034

69,841

197,450

260,461

14,034

69,841

AMOUNT OWING BY A SUBSIDIARY
THE GROUP
2009
2008
Non-trade related balances
Subsidiary

-

THE COMPANY
2009
2008

-

7,589,532

9,053,619

The amount owing is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

15.

FIXED DEPOSITS WITH LICENSED BANKS
The weighted average effective interest rates of deposits at the balance sheet date were as follows:
THE GROUP
2009
2008
%
%
Licensed banks

2.18

THE COMPANY
2009
2008
%
%
-

2.18

-

The average maturities of deposits at the balance sheet date were as follows:
THE GROUP
2009
2008
Days
Days
Licensed banks

16.

66

THE COMPANY
2009
2008
Days
Days
-

66

-

CASH AND BANK BALANCES
The foreign currency exposure proﬁle of cash and bank balances is as follows:THE GROUP
2009
2008
RM
RM
US Dollar
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At 31 October 2009 (cont’d)

17.

SHARE CAPITAL
THE GROUP / THE COMPANY
2009
2008
2009
NUMBER OF SHARES
RM

2008
RM

ORDINARY SHARES OF RM0.10 EACH:AUTHORISED
Balance at 31 October

250,000,000

250,000,000

25,000,000

25,000,000

ISSUED AND FULLY PAID-UP
Balance at 1 November
Allotment during the ﬁnancial year

67,087,600
-

66,997,600
90,000

6,708,760
-

6,699,760
9,000

Balance at 31 October

67,087,600

67,087,600

6,708,760

6,708,760

On 14 January 2005, the Company’s ESOS of up to 10% of the issued and paid-up share capital of the Company, which
is governed by the by-laws, was approved by the shareholders during an extraordinary general meeting and shall be in
force for a period of 10 years.
The salient features of the ESOS are as follows:(a)

any employee (including any persons who have entered into any service contract with the Group) and directors of
the Group are eligible to participate in the scheme, if, as at the offer date, such employee or director has attained
the age of 18 years and must have been conﬁrmed for regular employment in the case of an employee;

(b)

the maximum number of new ordinary shares of the Company which may be available under the scheme shall not
exceed in aggregate ten percent (10%) of the total issued and paid-up share capital of the Company at any one
time at the point of granting of the Option(s) during the existence of the Scheme;

(c)

the subscription price for the new ordinary shares will be the higher of the following: -

(d)

(e)

(i)

the weighted average market price of the shares for the ﬁve (5) Market Days immediately preceding the Offer
Date, with a discount of not more than ten percent (10%) at the Option Committee’s discretion; or

(ii)

the par value of the shares.

the scheme will lapse:(i)

when the eligible employee ceases to be employed by the Group;

(ii)

at the end of ten years from the date the scheme was approved by the shareholders and directors in a
general meeting;

(iii)

in the event of death, insanity or bankruptcy of the eligible employee;

(iv)

in the event of any misconduct by the eligible employee;

(v)

in the event of any breach of the By-Laws or the ESOS’s terms by the eligible employee;

(vi)

on winding up or liquidation of the Company or Group; and

(vii)

on termination of the ESOS.

the shares to be allotted upon any exercise of any option will upon issue and allotment, rank pari passu in all
respects with the existing issued ordinary shares, except that the shares will not to be entitled to any dividends,
rights, allotments and/or other distribution declared prior to the exercise of the options.
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Notes To The Financial Statements
At 31 October 2009 (cont’d)

17.

SHARE CAPITAL (CONT’D)
The movements in the share options during the ﬁnancial year are as follows:Date
of Offer

14.1.2005
14.1.2005
14.1.2005

Exercise
period

Exercise price
per ordinary
share
RM

13.4.2006
13.4.2007
13.4.2008

0.10
0.10
0.10

Balance
at
1.11.2008

During the year
Granted

Exercised

Lapsed

Balance
at
31.10.2009

2,300
5,300
106,000

-

-

(46,000)

2,300
5,300
60,000

113,600

-

-

(46,000)

67,600

Options exercisable in a particular year but not exercised can be carried forward to the subsequent years provided they
are exercised prior to the expiry date of the ESOS on 13 April 2015.
The weighted average share price at the date of exercise was RM NIL (2008 – RM0.23).

18.

SHARE OPTIONS RESERVE
THE GROUP/THE COMPANY
2009
2008
RM
RM
Balance at 1 November
Share options granted under ESOS
Share options exercised

66,400
-

89,400
27,000
(50,000)

Balance at 31 October

66,400

66,400

The share option reserve represents the equity-settled share options granted to employees. This reserve is made up of
the cumulative value of services received from employees recorded on grant of share options.

19.

LONG TERM BORROWINGS
THE GROUP
2009
2008
RM
RM
Term loans (Note 20)
Hire purchase payable (Note 21)

20.

992,274
197,700

39,613
242,908

1,189,974

282,521

TERM LOANS
THE GROUP
2009
2008
RM
RM



•

Current portion: (Note 24)
- repayable within one year

383,753

68,090

Non-current portion: (Note 19)
- repayable between one and two years

992,274

39,613

1,376,027

107,703
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At 31 October 2009 (cont’d)

20.

TERM LOANS (CONT’D)
The term loans is repayable by 60 (2008 – 24) equal monthly instalments of RM28,631 (2008 - RM5,994) per month with
effect from August 2008. The term loans bore an effective interest rate of 5.85% (2008 – 5%) per annum at the balance
sheet date.
The term loans is secured as follows:-

21.

(i)

by a corporate guarantee from the Company; and

(ii)

by way of a ﬁxed charge over the leasehold land together with a factory erected thereon as disclosed in Note 7 and
Note 8 to the ﬁnancial statements.

HIRE PURCHASE PAYABLE
THE GROUP
2009
2008
RM
RM
Minimum hire purchase payments:- not later than one year
- later than one year but not later than ﬁve years
- later than ﬁve years

51,060
208,463
-

51,060
255,300
4,223

259,523

310,583

Less: Future ﬁnance charges

(16,615)

(23,732)

Present value of hire purchase payable

242,908

286,851

45,208

43,943

197,700
-

238,694
4,214

197,700

242,908

242,908

286,851

Present value of hire purchase payable:Current portion: (Note 24)
Not later than one year
Non-current portion: (Note 19)
Later than one year but not later than ﬁve years
Later than ﬁve years

The hire purchase payable were subject to effective interest at rates of 2.65% (2008 - 2.65%) per annum at the balance
sheet date.

22.

TRADE PAYABLES
The normal trade credit terms granted to the Group range from 30 to 120 days.
The foreign currency exposure proﬁle of trade payables is as follows:THE GROUP
2009
2008
RM
RM
Singapore Dollar
Euro

67,896
2,337

VisDynamics Holdings Berhad
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Notes To The Financial Statements
At 31 October 2009 (cont’d)

23.

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

Other payables
Accruals

THE GROUP
2009
2008
RM
RM

THE COMPANY
2009
2008
RM
RM

495,757
894,478

683,581
1,530,285

33,058
185,273

100,829
263,791

1,390,235

2,213,866

218,331

364,620

Included in other payables and accruals of the Group is a provision for warranty claims amounting to RM72,683(2008 –
RM220,466).
The reversal or provision for warranty claims credited or charged to the Income Statement during the year is disclosed
in Note 27 to the ﬁnancial statements.
The foreign currency exposure proﬁle of other payables and accruals is as follows:THE GROUP
2009
2008
RM
RM
Singapore Dollar
US Dollar

24.

344,335

511,266
12,612

SHORT TERM BORROWINGS
THE GROUP
2009
2008
RM
RM
Term loans (Note 20)
Hire purchase payable (Note 21)
Banker acceptance

25.

383,753
45,208
-

68,090
43,943
263,000

428,961

375,033

NET ASSETS PER SHARE
The net assets per share of the Group is calculated based on the net assets value of RM15,225,297 (2008 – RM16,202,922)
attributable to ordinary shares divided by the number of ordinary shares in issue at the balance sheet date of 67,087,600
(2008 – 67,087,600) shares of RM0.10 each.

26.

REVENUE
Revenue of the Group represents the invoiced value of goods sold and services rendered less discounts and returns.
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Notes To The Financial Statements
At 31 October 2009 (cont’d)

27.

LOSS BEFORE TAXATION

NOTE

THE GROUP
2009
2008
RM
RM

THE COMPANY
2009
2008
RM
RM

Loss before taxation is arrived at
after charging/(crediting):Amortisation of development expenditure
Amortisation of prepaid land
lease payments
Amortisation of trademarks
Audit fee
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Equipment written off
Interest expenses
(Gain)/Loss on foreign exchange:
- realised
- unrealised
Provision for warranty claims
Reversal of provision for
warranty claims
Rental of premises
Employee beneﬁts
Write off of development expenditure
Gain on disposal of plant and equipment
Gain of disposal of investment
Interest income

28.

29

159,476

196,692

-

-

10,905
4,816
22,000

10,904
3,072
22,000

11,000

11,000

708,003
50,724

409,534
429,680
26,816

-

6,655

(43,346)
59,944
-

94,752
(127,606)
138,997

-

-

(158,599)
700
1,175,091
(5,234)
(27,659)

46,999
2,072,583
114,062
(1,864)
(155,905)
(4,050)

65,919
(20,380)

128,606
-

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
The aggregate amount of emoluments received and receivable by directors of the Group and of the Company during the
ﬁnancial year are as follows:The breakdown of the directors’ remuneration:THE GROUP
2009
2008
RM
RM
Non-executive directors
- fees
Executive directors
- salaries
- bonus
- Employees Provident Fund
- other emoluments

Beneﬁt-in-kind
- Non-executive directors
- Executive directors

THE COMPANY
2009
2008
RM
RM

66,000

132,000

66,000

132,000

257,720
(39,410)
26,384
1,860

336,100
24,434
43,510
1,860

150,288
(38,036)
13,620
620

214,400
20,668
28,358
620

246,554

405,904

126,492

264,046

312,554

537,904

192,492

396,046

9,552
2,850

8,402
4,028

9,552
2,850

8,402
4,028

12,402

12,430

12,402

12,430
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Notes To The Financial Statements
At 31 October 2009 (cont’d)

28.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (CONT’D)
The breakdown of the categories charged out to:-

Charged to income statement
Capitalised to development expenditure
Capitalised to capital work-in-progress
Capitalised to ﬁnished goods

THE GROUP
2009
2008
RM
RM

THE COMPANY
2009
2008
RM
RM

269,197
11,752
27,844
3,761

518,930
8,787
8,448
1,739

192,492
-

396,046
-

312,554

537,904

192,492

396,046

The details of emoluments for the directors of the Group and of the Company received and receivable for the ﬁnancial
year by category and in bands of RM50,000 are as follows:THE GROUP
2009
2008

29.

THE COMPANY
2009
2008

Non-executive directors
Below RM50,000
RM50,001 – RM100,000

2
1

2
1

2
1

2
1

Executive directors
RM50,001 – RM100,000
RM100,001 – RM150,000

2
2

2
2

2

2

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
The breakdown of the staff costs:THE GROUP
2009
2008
RM
RM
Salaries and wages
Bonus
Employees Provident Fund
Social Security Contribution
Other staff related expenses
Share options granted under ESOS

THE COMPANY
2009
2008
RM
RM

1,387,017
(53,686)
142,191
18,678
120,539
-

1,961,657
43,312
208,177
25,626
100,764
27,000

58,691
(15,810)
5,153
568
17,317
-

87,760
5,784
11,257
620
17,785
5,400

1,614,739

2,366,536

65,919

128,606

1,175,091
121,461
281,363
36,824

2,072,583
143,051
137,094
13,808

65,919
-

128,606
-

1,614,739

2,366,536

65,919

128,606

The breakdown of the categories charged out to:Charged to income statement
Capitalised to development expenditure
Capitalised to capital work-in-progress
Capitalised to ﬁnished goods
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Notes To The Financial Statements
At 31 October 2009 (cont’d)

30.

TAX EXPENSE
THE GROUP
2009
2008
RM
RM

THE COMPANY
2009
2008
RM
RM

Current tax expense :
Malaysian Income Tax for the ﬁnancial year
Other tax expense
Under provision in prior year

16,342
-

1,016
907

-

-

Tax expense for the ﬁnancial year

16,342

1,923

-

-

A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to the loss before taxation at the statutory tax rate to income tax
expense at the effective tax rate of the Group and of the Company is as follows:THE GROUP
2009
2008
RM
RM

THE COMPANY
2009
2008
RM
RM

Loss before taxation

(961,283)

(1,491,024)

(139,146)

(571,320)

Tax at the applicable corporate tax rate

(240,000)

(388,000)

(35,000)

(148,000)

Tax effects of :
Non-deductible expenses
Deferred tax asset not recognised
Reversal of deferred tax asset not recognised
Others
Under provision of current tax in prior year

123,000
112,000
(3,000)
24,342
-

313,170
72,000
907

38,000
(3,000)
-

76,000
72,000
-

16,342

1,923

-

-

Tax expense for the ﬁnancial year

The subsidiary has been granted pioneer status under the Promotion of Investments Act, 1986. Accordingly, 100%
of the subsidiary’s statutory income from pioneer activities is exempted from income tax for a period of ﬁve years,
commencing 1 June 2003 and has been extended for another ﬁve years commencing 1 June 2008.

31.

LOSS PER SHARE
(i)

Basic loss per share
The basic loss per share for the ﬁnancial year is arrived at by dividing the Group’s loss attributable to shareholders
of RM977,625 (2008 – RM1,492,947) by the weighted average number of ordinary shares of RM0.10 each in issue
during the ﬁnancial year of 67,087,600 (2008 – 67,038,038)

(ii)

Diluted earnings per share
The computation of the diluted earnings per share is not applicable as the Group is in a loss position.
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Notes To The Financial Statements
At 31 October 2009 (cont’d)

32.

PURCHASE OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
THE GROUP
2009
2008
RM
RM

33.

Cost of property, plant and equipment purchased
Amount ﬁnanced through hire purchase

147,651
-

4,000,516
-

Cash disbursed for purchase of property, plant and equipment

147,651

4,000,516

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
For the purpose of the cash ﬂow statements, cash and cash equivalents comprised the following:THE GROUP
2009
2008
RM
RM
Fixed deposits with licensed banks
Cash and bank balances

34.

THE COMPANY
2009
2008
RM
RM

1,283,629
829,698

2,061,971

1,283,629
100,271

149,441

2,113,327

2,061,971

1,383,900

149,441

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
(i)

The Company has the following transactions with its subsidiary during the ﬁnancial year:THE COMPANY
2009
2008
RM
RM
Subsidiary
Management fee received/receivable

(ii)

360,000

360,000

Compensation of key management personnel
The remuneration of directors and other members of key management during the year were as follows:

Short-term employee beneﬁts
Employees Provident Fund
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THE GROUP
2009
2008
RM
RM

THE COMPANY
2009
2008
RM
RM

604,106
61,568

905,365
89,719

239,638
18,773

485,037
39,615

665,674

995,084

258,411

524,652

Notes To The Financial Statements
At 31 October 2009 (cont’d)

34.

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONT’D)
(ii)

Compensation of key management personnel (Cont’d)
Included in the compensation of key management personnel are:

Directors’ remuneration (Note 28)

THE GROUP
2009
2008
RM
RM

THE COMPANY
2009
2008
RM
RM

312,554

192,492

537,904

396,046

Executive directors of the Group and the Company and other members of key management have been granted the
following number of options under the ESOS:
THE GROUP
2009
2008
Balance at 1 November
Forfeited

40,000
(40,000)

40,000
-

-

40,000

Balance at 31 October

35.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
THE COMPANY
2009
2008
RM
RM
Guarantee given to a ﬁnancial institution for banking facilities granted to a subsidiary

36.

6,100,000

7,100,000

SEGMENTAL REPORTING
THE GROUP
2009
2008
RM
RM
SALES REVENUE BY GEOGRAPHICAL MARKET:Malaysia
South East Asia
North Asia
USA

691,258
353,942
423,257
1,741,341

1,829,764
2,183,862
5,142,816
154,442

3,209,798

9,310,884

No other segmental information such as segment assets, liabilities and results are presented as the Group is principally
engaged in business as a manufacturer of automated test equipment and operates from Malaysia only.
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Notes To The Financial Statements
At 31 October 2009 (cont’d)

37.

FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Fair value is deﬁned as the amount at which the ﬁnancial instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction
between knowledgeable willing parties in an arm’s length transaction, other than in a forced sale or liquidation.
The following methods and assumptions are used to estimate the fair value of each item of ﬁnancial instruments:(a)

Amount owing by a subsidiary
The Company does not anticipate the carrying amount recorded at the balance sheet date to be signiﬁcantly
different from the value that would eventually be received or settled.

(b)

Cash and bank balances and other short term receivables
The carrying amounts approximated their fair values due to the relatively short term maturity of these instruments.

(c)

Short term bank borrowings and other current liabilities
The carrying amounts approximated their fair values because of the short period to maturity of these instruments.

(d)

Long term bank borrowings
The carrying amount approximated the fair value as this instrument bears interest at variable rates.

(e)

Hire purchase obligations
The fair values of hire purchase payables are determined by discounting the relevant cash ﬂows using current
interest rates for similar types of instruments. There is no material difference between the fair values and the
carrying values of these liabilities as at the balance sheet date.

(f)

Contingent liabilities
The nominal amount and net fair value of ﬁnancial instruments not recognised in the balance sheets of the
Company are as follows:
2009
Nominal
amount
RM
Corporate guarantees
*-



•

6,100,000

2008
Net Fair
Value
RM
*

Nominal
Amount
RM
7,100,000

Net Fair
Value
RM
*

The fair value of contingent liabilities is expected to be minimal as the subsidiary is expected to be able to
repay the banking facilities.
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List Of Landed Properties
As At 31 October 2009

Description

Corporate and manufacturing plant

Location

Lot 3844 Jalan TU 52,
Kawasan Perindustrian Tasik Utama
Ayer Keroh, 75450 Melaka

Land area

6,690 square metres

Tenure

Leasehold (99 years) expiring on 29 March 2097

Net book value as at 31/10/2008

RM953,231

Date of acquisition

20 February 2007
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Analysis Of Shareholdings
As At 5 March 2010

Authorised Share Capital

:

RM25,000,000.00

Issued and fully paid up Capital

:

RM6,708,760.00

Class of Shares

:

Ordinary shares of RM0.10 each

Voting Rights

:

Every member of the Company, present in person or by proxy, shall have on a show of
hands, one (1) vote or on a poll, one (1) vote for each share held

DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDINGS AS AT 5 MARCH 2010
NO. OF
CATEGORY

NO. OF

HOLDERS

%

HOLDINGS

FOREIGN

3

1.09

134

0.00

Less than 100
100 - 1,000

41

14.85

32,300

0.05

129

46.74

709,100

1.06

10,001 - 100,000

64

23.19

2,640,600

3.94

100,001 to less than 5% issued shares

38

13.77

43,354,166

64.62

1

0.36

20,351,300

30.33

276

100.00

67,087,600

100.00

SHAREHOLDINGS

%

20,351,300

30.33

20,351,300

30.33

SHAREHOLDINGS

%

1,001 - 10,000

5% and above issued shaes
TOTAL

LIST OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AS AT 5 MARCH 2010
NAME
1.

CHOY NGEE HOE
TOTAL

LIST OF DIRECTORS’ SHAREHOLDINGS AS AT 5 MARCH 2010
NAME
1.

KHAIRIL ANUAR BIN ABDULLAH

786,000

1.17

2.

CHOY NGEE HOE

20,351,300

30.33

3

LEE CHONG LENG

3,036,100

4.53

4.

ONG HUI PENG

3,036,100

4.53

5.

NORDIN BIN BAHARUDDIN

100,000

0.15

6.

AZZAT BIN KAMALUDIN

100,000

0.15

27,409,500

40.86

TOTAL
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Analysis Of Shareholdings
As At 5 March 2010 (cont’d)

LIST OF THIRTY (30) LARGEST SHAREHOLDERS AS AT 5 MARCH 2010
NAME

NO. OF SHARES HELD

%

20,351,300

30.33

1

CHOY NGEE HOE

2

TAN KIAN BENG

3,338,200

4.98

3

LEMBAGA TABUNG HAJI

3,335,000

4.97

4

ONG HUI PENG

3,036,100

4.53

5

LIM YONG JUAY

3,036,100

4.53

6

LEE CHONG LENG

3,036,100

4.53

7

CH’NG PAED WEE

3,036,100

4.53

8

JONG PIT FONG

2,360,200

3.52

9

TEO LEONG KHOON

2,360,200

3.52

10

CHONG CHOY FOONG

2,254,200

3.36

11

CHAN HENG SOON

1,914,066

2.85

12

KATHRINE KONG SIEW FONG

1,500,000

2.24

13

NG KIAN WAI

1,250,000

1.86

14

EB NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SENDIRIAN BERHAD

1,250,000

1.86

1,168,900

1.74

1,122,000

1.67

800,000

1.19

PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR LIM WEE ENG (TMH-SFC)
15

RHB CAPITAL NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR MOHAMAD AZRIL BIN ABDUL RAZAK (CEB)

16

CHAN HENG SOON

17

AMSEC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
TANG PEN SAN (9984-1101)

18

KHAIRIL ANUAR BIN ABDULLAH

786,000

1.17

19

TANG PEN SAN

778,500

1.16

20

JONG PIT FONG

675,900

1.01

21

TEO LEONG KHOON

675,900

1.01

22

LAI KUM SIM

500,000

0.74

23

CIMSEC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD

500,000

0.74

CIMB BANK FOR PHANG CHET PING (MY0322)
24

MOHD RAZALI BIN ABDUL RAHMAN

500,000

0.74

25

LIM WEE ENG

500,000

0.74

26

CHONG WEN TAT

495,900

0.74

27

TAN HOCK VENG

469,000

0.70

28

CHONG WEN TAT

386,600

0.58

29

TANG PEN SAN

348,300

0.52

30

CIMSEC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD

335,000

0.50

62,099,566

92.56

CIMB BANK FOR LIAN TENG HAI (MM0867)
TOTAL
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Notice Of Fifth Annual General Meeting

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Fifth (5th) Annual General Meeting of VisDynamics Holdings Berhad will be held at Tiara 1 &
2, Level 2, The Royale Bintang Kuala Lumpur, 17-21, Jalan Bukit Bintang, 55100 Kuala Lumpur on Friday, 23 April 2010 at 10.00
a.m., for the purpose of considering the following businesses:
AGENDA
Ordinary Business
1.

To lay the Audited Financial Statements for the ﬁnancial year ended 31 October 2009
together with the Reports of the Directors and the Auditors thereon.

2.

To approve the payment of Directors’ fees of RM66,000.00 for the ﬁnancial year ended 31
October 2009.

Ordinary Resolution 1

Retirement of Encik Khairil Anuar Bin Abdullah who is retiring pursuant to Article 69 of the
Company’s Articles of Association and has not offered himself for re-election.

Ordinary Resolution 2

Re-election of Ms Ong Hui Peng who is retiring pursuant to Article 69 of the Company’s
Articles of Association and being eligible has offered herself for re-election.

Ordinary Resolution 3

3.
4.
5.

To appoint Messrs Wong Weng Foo & Co. as auditors of the Company in place of Messrs
Crowe Horwath (formerly known as Messrs Horwath) and authorise the Directors to ﬁx their
remuneration.
The notice of nomination pursuant to Section 172(11) of the Companies Act, 1965 in respect
of the nomination of Messrs Wong Weng Foo & Co. for appointment as Auditors of the
Company in place of the retiring Auditors, Messrs Crowe Horwath (formerly known as Messrs
Horwath), has been received by the Company, a copy of which is marked as “Annexure A” in
the Annual Report.

Ordinary Resolution 4

Special Business
To consider and if thought ﬁt, pass the following resolution:
6.

Authority to Issue and Allot Shares Pursuant to Section 132D of the Companies Act,
1965
“THAT pursuant to Section 132D of the Companies Act, 1965, the Directors be and are hereby
empowered to issue and allot shares in the Company, at any time until the conclusion of the
next Annual General Meeting and upon such terms and conditions and for such purposes as
the Directors may, in their absolute discretion, deem ﬁt, provided that the aggregate number
of shares issued does not exceed 10% of the issued capital of the Company at the time of
issue and that the Directors be and are also empowered to obtain the approval for the listing
of and quotation for the additional shares so issued, subject to the Companies Act, 1965,
the Articles of Association of the Company and approval from the Bursa Malaysia Securities
Berhad and other relevant bodies where such approval is necessary.”

Ordinary Resolution 5

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD
MAH LI CHEN (MAICSA 7022751)
NG LAI YEE (MAICSA 7031768)
PEGGY CHEK HONG KIM (MIA 23475)
Company Secretaries
Kuala Lumpur
Dated this 1st day of April 2010
Notes :
1.
Every member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy / proxies to attend and vote for him/her but such attendance shall
automatically revoke the proxy’s authority. A proxy may but need not be a member of the Company. If the proxy is not a member of the Company, he need
not be an advocate, an approved company auditor or a person approved by the Registrar of Companies.
2.
A member shall be entitled to appoint at least one (1) and up to three (3) proxies to attend at the same meeting. Where a member appoints more than one
(1) proxy, the proxies shall not be valid unless he/she speciﬁes the proportion of his/her shareholdings to be represented by each proxy.
3.
The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing (in common or usual form) under the hand of the appointer or of his attorney duly authorised in writing
or, if the appointor is a corporation, either under the seal or under the hand of an ofﬁcer or attorney duly authorised.
4.
The instrument appointing a proxy or the power of attorney or other authority, if any, under which it is signed or a notarially certiﬁed copy of that power or
authority shall be deposited at the Registered Ofﬁce of the Company at 10th Floor Menara Hap Seng, No. 1 & 3 Jalan P. Ramlee, 50250 Kuala Lumpur not
less than forty-eight (48) hours before the time for holding the meeting or any adjournment thereof.
5.
Explanatory Notes on Special Business
(a) Authority to Issue and Allot Shares Pursuant to Section 132D of the Companies Act, 1965
The proposed Ordinary Resolution 5, if passed, will give ﬂexibility to the Directors of the Company to issue shares and allot up to a maximum of ten
percentum (10%) of the issued share capital of the Company at the time of such allotment and issuance of shares and for such purposes as they
consider would be in the best interest of the Company without having to convene separate general meetings. This authority, unless revoked or varied
at a general meeting, will expire at the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company. No shares had been issued and allotted by the
Company since obtaining the said authority from its shareholders at the last Annual General Meeting held on 24 April 2009.
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Statement Accompanying Notice
Of Annual General Meeting
1.

The Directors who are retiring and standing for re-election at the Fifth Annual General Meeting to be held at Tiara 1 &
2, Level 2, The Royale Bintang Kuala Lumpur, 17-21, Jalan Bukit Bintang, 55100 Kuala Lumpur on Friday, 23 April 2010 at
10.00 a.m. are Encik Khairil Anuar Bin Abdullah and Ms Ong Hui Peng respectively.
Further details of the Directors who are retiring and standing for re-election are set out in the Directors’ Profiles appearing
on pages 8 to 10 of the Annual Report.

2.

During the financial year ended 31 October 2009, five (5) Board meetings were held. Details of attendance of each
Director are set out in the Statement on Corporate Governance appearing on page 13 of the Annual Report.
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ANNEXURE A

Choy Ngee Hoe
No. 8 Jalan P4
Taman Pelangi
Ayer Keroh
75450 Melaka

Date :

The Board of Directors
VisDynamics Holdings Berhad
10th Floor, Menara Hap Seng
No. 1 & 3 Jalan R. Ramlee
50250 Kuala Lumpur

Dear Sirs
NOTICE OF NOMINATION OF MESSRS WONG WENG FOO & CO. AS AUDITORS
I am the registered shareholder of 20,351,300 ordinary shares of RM0.10 each, representing 30.38% of the issued and paid-up
capital of VisDynamics Holdings Berhad.
I hereby give notice, pursuant to Section 172(11) of the Companies Act, 1965 of my nomination of Messrs Wong Weng Foo &
Co. as Auditors of the Company in place of the retiring auditors, Messrs Crowe Horwath (formerly known as Messrs Horwath)
and of my intention to propose the following resolution as an ordinary resolution at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting
of the Company:
“THAT Messrs Wong Weng Foo & Co. of 41 Damai Complex, Jalan Dato’ Haji Eusoff, 50400 Kuala Lumpur be and are hereby
appointed as Auditors of the Company in place of the retiring Auditors, Messrs Crowe Horwath (formerly known as Messrs
Horwath), to hold ofﬁce until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting at a remuneration to be determined by the
Directors.”

Yours faithfully

Choy Ngee Hoe
Shareholder
Copy to : The Company Secretary

VISDYNAMICS HOLDINGS BERHAD (677095-M)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

PROXY FORM

Number Of Shares Held

* I/We
of
being a Member(s) of VISDYNAMICS HOLDINGS BERHAD (677095-M), hereby appoint
Name

Address

NRIC / Passport No.

Proportion of Shareholdings (%)

*And/or (delete as appropriate)

*And/or (delete as appropriate)

or failing him/her, *THE CHAIRMAN OF THE MEETING as *my/our proxy(ies), to vote for *me/us on *my/our behalf at the Fifth
Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held at Tiara 1 & 2, Level 2, The Royale Bintang Kuala Lumpur, 17-21, Jalan Bukit
Bintang, 55100 Kuala Lumpur on Friday, 23 April 2010 at 10.00 a.m. or at any adjournment thereof.
#

If you wish to appoint other person(s) to be your proxy/proxies, kindly delete the words “or failing him/her, The Chairman
of the Meeting” and insert the name(s) of the person(s) desired.

Mark either box if you wish to direct the proxy how to vote. If no mark is made the proxy may vote on the resolution or abstain
from voting as the proxy think ﬁt. If you appoint more than one proxy and wish them to vote differently this should be speciﬁed.
My/our proxy/proxies is/are to vote as indicated below:
Ordinary Resolution

For

1

To approve the payment of Directors’ fees of RM66,000 for the ﬁnancial year ended
31 October 2009.

2

Retirement of Khairil Anuar Bin Abdullah as Director

3

Re-election of Ong Hui Peng as Director

4

To appoint Messrs Wong Weng Foo & Co. as the Auditors Company in place of the
retiring Auditors, Messrs Crowe Horwath (formerly known as Messrs Horwath), to
hold ofﬁce until the conclusion of the next Annual General of the Company and to
authorise the Directors to ﬁx the auditors’ remuneration.

5

Special Business 1

Against

Authority to Issue and Allot Shares Pursuant to Section 132D of the Companies Act,
1965
*

Delete if not applicable.

Signed this

day of

2010
Signature / Common Seal of Shareholder

Notes:
(1)

Every member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy / proxies to attend and vote for him/her but such attendance
shall automatically revoke the proxy’s authority. A proxy may but need not be a member of the Company. If the proxy is not a member of the
Company, he need not be an advocate, an approved company auditor or a person approved by the Registrar of Companies..

(2)

A member shall be entitled to appoint at least one (1) and up to three (3) proxies to attend at the same meeting. Where a member appoints more
than one (1) proxy, the proxies shall not be valid unless he/she speciﬁes the proportion of his/her shareholdings to be represented by each proxy.

(3)

The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing (in common or usual form) under the hand of the appointer or of his attorney duly authorised
in writing or, if the appointor is a corporation, either under the seal or under the hand of an ofﬁcer or attorney duly authorised.

(4)

The instrument appointing a proxy or the power of attorney or other authority, if any, under which it is signed or a notarially certiﬁed copy of that
power or authority shall be deposited at the Registered Ofﬁce of the Company at 10th Floor Menara Hap Seng, No. 1 & 3 Jalan P. Ramlee, 50250
Kuala Lumpur not less than forty-eight (48) hours before the time for holding the meeting or any adjournment thereof.
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